MINUTES
of the

COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI
June 7, 2011
THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI, STATE OF
HAWAII, WAS HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, KALANA 0 MAUI BUILDING,
WAILUKU, HAWAII, ON TUESDAY, JUNE 7, 2011, BEGINNING AT 9:05 A.M., WITH
CHAIR DENNIS A. MATEO PRESIDING.
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui regular meeting of June 7, 2011 will come to
order.
Mr. Clerk, may we have the roll call, please.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS GLADYS C. BAISA, ROBERT CARROLL,
ELEANORA COCHRAN, DONALD G. COUCH JR.,
G. RIKI HOKAMA, MICHAEL P. VICTORINO, MICHAEL B.
WHITE, VICE-CHAIR JOSEPH PONTANILLA, AND
CHAIR DENNIS A. MATEO.
EXCUSED: NONE.
COUNTY CLERK JEFFREY T. KUWADA: Mr. Chairman, all nine Members of the Council
are present.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank, thank you very much.
Members, this morning our colleague from South Maui will be providing the opening
remarks for us. Mr. Couch.

OPENING REMARKS
The opening remarks were offered by Councilmember Donald G. Couch Jr.
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PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Members of the Council, and others in attendance, rose and recited the
Pledge of Allegiance.

CHAIR MATEO: Again, thank you, Mr. Couch for your words, and absolutely, you know, the
reminder of being pono is always the way to start not only our days, but the way in
we conduct business, so thank you for the reminder.
Mr. Clerk, let's proceed.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, proceeding with presentation of testimony on agenda
items. We have received seventeen requests from individuals who wish to offer
testimony.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Before the Clerk calls up the first testifier, the Chair would like
to set the parameters for anyone providing testimony to the Council. We welcome
anyone wanting to share your comments with the Council this morning.
You will be allowed to speak for three minutes on any of the items posted on the
agenda for today. When your name is called, please advance to the podium, state
your name for the record and if represent a group or organization, please so state the
name of that group or organization as well.
A lighting system on the podium is there to assist you with your testimony. At the
start of your comments the green light will be lit. At the two minute thirty second
mark the yellow light will be lit, letting you know you have thirty seconds to conclude
And at the three minute mark the red light will be lit letting you know you will need to
conclude. If you need a little more time, an additional minute will be provided to you
so you may end your remarks.
.

And for those of us with cell phones or other noise making devices, please be sure
they are either turned off or set on the silent mode to avoid disruptions. Decorum in
this chamber will be maintained at all times.
Mr. Clerk, call up our first testifier please.
COUNTY CLERK: Calling David Blair. Mr. Blair will be followed by Wendy Higa.
Mr. Chairman, unless otherwise noted, testifiers will offer testimony on Bill No. 34.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
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PRESENTATION OF WRITTEN OR ORAL TESTIMONY
MR. DAVID BLAIR (testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
My name is Dave Blair and I'm speaking today in support of the twelve bed proposed
Hospice Hale. Throughout my adult life I've come into contact with and helped those
members of our society commonly referred to as less fortunate, underprivileged and
homeless.
In 1998, I retired as a Police Lieutenant from the Maui County Police Department
after 25 years of service. After my retirement, I worked at the Maui Memorial Medical
Center where I assisted individuals and families in getting approved for Quest
medical coverage. For the last several years I have worked as a case manager at
the Lahaina Resource Homeless Shelter.
I have also had the privilege of twice being a caregiver, once for my dad and most
recently for my wife Josephine who passed away in September of last year. Our
family relied on Hospice services heavily during very difficult times. I don't hesitate in
saying that Hospice carried our family during the last five months of my wife's life.
While the circumstances were extremely difficult, the service, knowledge, care and
compassion given by Hospice was simply outstanding. But the quality of care and
service by Hospice is not in question. The question is whether to fund the proposed
Hospice facility. I hope that answer is yes.
I have been told that approximately 10 to 15 percent of our population will die
suddenly. That leaves 85 to 90 percent of us who will experience a longer dying
process. Many of these are homeless, many are without caregivers, many are left
without dignity.
As a beat officer and detective, I was called to the scene of several unattended
deaths where a homeless of unsheltered person died. I can tell you first hand that
they die in parks, under stairs, near churches and in vacant lots. There is no comfort,
no caring people to ease the pain and fear. Caregivers are an essential part of the
Hospice team, but they are missing for the typical homeless, unsheltered person.
The proposed Hospice Hale would not only provide a physical structure for the
terminally ill, but it can provide a place where the high quality of professionalism and
caring can couple with the excellent staff and volunteers to provide the love and
comfort and caring we all want when our time comes.
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Finally, I would like to touch on the efforts, the effects that a facility such as the
Hospice Hale has on others. We are a society that cares for all the people, from all
walks of life, and all social levels. The Hospice Hale sends a message that we care
and we love, that we have compassion. It also allows some to teach and others to
learn how to care for those who are dying. It is my belief that the proposed Hospice
Hale is long overdue.
CHAIR MATEO: One minute to conclude.
MR. BLAIR: It fulfills a need that others cannot and it gives comfort and love to those who
need it. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you very much, Mr. Blair.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Wendy Higa. Ms. Higa will be followed by Maria Keau.

MS. WENDY HIGA (testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Good morning, Council Chair and Councilmembers. My name is Wendy Higa and
I'm here to speak on behalf of Project Grad. I was very sad to hear that Project Grad
money got cut from the budget. I'm hoping I'm here to help to change your mind.
Project Grad is set up to be a drug free, alcohol free, safe night for our graduates. It
is a program designed to help keep them safe on one of the biggest nights of their
lives. The kids feel invincible, if they are there, out there on their own, they think
nothing can hurt them.
Previously each Project Graduation Committee that qualifies gets $5,000 to spend on
Project Grad. The qualification was that you needed to spend a minimum of
50 percent of the funding for people who cannot afford to otherwise attend Project
Grad. The money was set aside as scholarships.
When I did Project Grad at Baldwin, we surpassed the 50 percent easily, it could
have been like 75 percent. It's not easy for the students to come to you to ask for
assistance but it really helps to have it there so we can send them.
I ask that you please reconsider, put money back in the budget, the budget for
Project Grad and be pono, do what is right. Thank you.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2011
Page 5

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Higa. And Members, is there a need to have any part of
the testimony rephrased? Thank you, Ms. Higa.
MS. HIGA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Maria Keau. Ms. Keau will be followed by Bryan Sarasin.

MS. MARIA KEAU (testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Good morning. My name is Maria Keau and I'm here on behalf of Maui High School
Project Graduation. First of all we'd like to say thank you for providing Project Grad
with the grant in the past and I'm here to ask for your continued support because I
believe that you cannot put a price tag on saving someone's life.
The purpose of Project Graduation is to insure that graduation is a triumph not a
tragedy. It is an effective, positive alternative for our graduates on commencement
night, the biggest celebration of their high school years. It is a time for the
classmates to be together one last time.
Project, Project Grad is held in 50 states and has been around for 11 years and
participation has been growing ever since. With the help of the County grant, we are
able to make this event affordable for all, we do not turn away anyone based on their
ability to pay. Each year the number of seniors participating increases. This year we
had 124 students attend Project Grad and 49 were subsidized by this County grant.
Students who have attended this have said this has been the best night of their lives.
Project Grad is planned by volunteer parents who dedicate hundreds of hours and
lots of hard work to host a safe and secure drug and alcohol free environment for our
graduates. Strong support from the parents and the community are key factors for its
success.
Our main goal is to keep the seniors off the road on graduation night, a night when
underage drinking is at an all-time high nationwide. When a student choses to drink
and drive, they not only endanger the lives of themselves, but the lives of everyone
who chooses to be on the road that night and it may happen to be you or someone
you love.
I hope the County Council finds it in their heart to find the money to perpetuate this
safe and positive event. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you, Ms. Keau.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Bryan Sarasin, followed by Greg LaGoy.

MR. BRYAN SARASIN [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Good morning, Council Chair and Councilmembers. My name is Bryan Sarasin and
I'm testifying as an individual. I appreciated the Maui News June 5, 2011 Viewpoint
by Mr. Pontanilla. I quote "It would bankrupt, bankrupt already struggling cattle
ranchers who operate on multiple parcels. The increase would put fully disabled
veterans out of their homes. Clearly, this was not the committee's intent. Obviously,
the economy is still less than ideal. People are still out of work, and the jobs that are
available are limited."
Thank you for listening. This has not been an easy task doing the budget. In
listening to Akaku, and some of your Council meetings, I've heard from one or two
Councilmembers on Akaku refer to the interest on money that the County has. And
the interest on that money would more than cover this shortfall without taking money
away from existing programs.
I would hope that this pool of funds receives your consideration. The people that this
minimum tax will hurt is the little guy. The homeowners exemption taking away $100
a $100,000 deduction is, is again penalizing the little guy. For me in this hard
economic times, sidewalk feasibility studies and this type of spending needs to be
done when there is enough money to go around, not now.
I appreciate the effort of this Council to setup a committee to look at these property
issues at the end of the budget. I would like to see public input with public meetings
in the evenings when working people can come out and give input. Again I
appreciate you the Council for your hard work in this tough economic times.
I thank you in advance for keeping the 150 minimum tax for now. Thank you for
listening to the little guy.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you very much, Mr. Sarasin.
Mr. Clerk.
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COUNTY CLERK: Greg LaGoy, followed by Lorrin Pang.

MR. GREG LAGOY [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
My name is Greg LaGoy and I'm representing Hospice Maui. Good morning
everyone. We have, we've put obviously a lot of effort into, into the thinking and
planning for what we're doing. One of the things that I'm here again this morning in
order to keep in focus the importance of this project. Not just to us, because we're
representing people who are dying, people who end up in the hospital spending their
last days instead of in a more appropriate environment, comfortable environment.
We've been told that it's, it's important for us to have as many people come to these
proceedings as possible. I've asked my senior salaried staff members, who might
stand for a moment please, to, to please come. We feel that our resources are best
kept within our mission and so we didn't come with 25 staff members here this
morning as we could have. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, is there a need to have any part of the
testimony rephrased? Thank you very much, Mr. LaGoy.
MR. LAGOY: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Lorrin Pang, followed by Kathleen Phillips.

DR. LORRIN PANG [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Good morning. My name is Lorrin Pang. Today I speak as the Health Officer for
Maui County. I'm going to speak on Item 34, where the money goes to for the
budget. I would like to address Community Workday. I have a conflict of interest,
I've been a Board Member for them for about three years now.
It kind of dawned on me, I never intended it that Community Workday really does
have a big effect on the health, the physical health of our residents of Maui. There
was a phrase "good health starts with a good environment". I guess that's half true, it
starts with good genetics too.
But as far as the environment is concerned, I just want to bring up five examples,
pretty clear that Community Workday does affect our health. Number one, these
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people move very quickly for vector control, vector being mosquitoes, rodents or flies.
Now, mosquitoes you all heard about dengue. They have a very good rapport with
the community, they're very efficient and they're very akamai about not getting
dengue themselves when they go out to clean up the dengue.
You don't know so much, but the flies and rodents are another key issue, they do it,
we don't talk about it that much, but this E. coli outbreak, the one in Europe, that's
feces, feces. That's rodents, that's flies.
Next thing is the homeless. They clean up after the homeless. Homeless is a big
reservoir of germs, especially with needles and syringes, I won't say any more about
that.
They clean up our chemicals, you, we always had at least on Oahu, solvents going
into our groundwater, pesticides going into our groundwater. They clean up the
batteries, the paints, and the solvents.
And the final thing just started about a year and a half ago is obesity. The, we are
having an obesity epidemic. The Federal people have wanted to address it with
physical activity, and better eating, fruits, vegetables and high fiber carbohydrates.
So Community Workday it's exactly the target group we're trying to reach, they have
all these people, residents, volunteering to clean up.
The physical activity is supposed to be five times a week, yeah that was the
recommendation about seven years ago. Then it changed to twice a week, maybe
an hour each time. Then it changed to even standing up. The epidemic is so bad,
we're just trying to get people moving at any level. Community Workday addresses
exactly this, the groups who need it the most, the groups who had spread word of
mouth, who don't want to listen to an advertisement.
The final thing is the eating. We know that people eat what they tend to handle and
grow. Community Workday was cleaning up invasive species. They replanted with
native species. We asked them to focus on native food plants, and they went one
better, they said well Dr. Pang, we will replant with any plant, food plant, any food as
long as it's not invasive. So because of that, oh we drew a big Federal grant, we tied
up the money throughout bureaucratically, but Community Workday had deep
pockets to cover it until the money kicked in. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you, Dr. Pang.
DR. PANG: Thank you.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2011
Page 9

CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Kathleen Phillips, followed by Adrienne Laurion.

MS. KATHLEEN PHILLIPS [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
My name is Kathleen Phillips. I represent myself as well as the seniors of the AARP
Kula Chapter. I thank you Councilmembers and Chairman for all your hard work and
efforts that you have done with the budget; however, we do have some concerns.
Many of the people are concerns of the cuts to the budget. My AARP members were
not able to be here but have assured me that they called your office to make their
concerns heard.
I come here today to request that the moneys that were eliminated from the MEO
Transportation Facility budget, the 250,000 be put back into the budget. With this
cut, I understand we have lost the $4 million from the State to help with this MEO
facility. This could mean jobs for our people.
I am also concerned about the cuts for the Hospice Program. Land was leased and
they are counting on this money. They are not doing these services for themselves
but for the people who are in need. My husband's a deacon and together he and I
have worked with the Hospice Program. They have given so much, they need this.
Think about it.
I ask that you all come to a compromise and work to find a way to correct this
problem with the budget. What is it going to take? At last resort, raising the property
tax a tad, a tad, $.10 per thousand dollars to get these things done may possibly be a
part of the solution. As for the farmers, maybe a special formula could be worked out
or even for the seniors.
We all need to start thinking out of the box and see what work for all. Money is going
to continue to be tight and we must start to look at what works. Please always
remember when making these decisions that seniors are on a fixed budget.
I also ask all the organizations, you the County Council, and our Mayor to look at the
requests that come in. See what needs to be streamlined and after much thought,
research, and compromise, put a package together and find, and fund the
organizations, have a plan for the farmers, and have a budget so all will benefit and
public needs will be taken cared of. Mahalo.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased?
The Chair would just like to provide clarification to you, Ms. Phillips.
MS. PHILLIPS: Yes.
CHAIR MATEO: Some of your statements are, are incorrect. I think you need to correct the
statement that indicates that the MEO Transportation Facility of $250,000 you
understand that if this funds is cut that $4 million from the State has been lost. That
is not correct. There is no, there is no matching requirement for that particular fund.
The Governor's Office is still reviewing the funds, it is up to their scrutiny and has
nothing to do with the $250,000.
Further Ms. Phillips, just for clarification purposes.
MS. PHILLIPS: Yes.
CHAIR MATEO: Because you were making your statements publicly and on the air, you
need to know that the so-called land that the Hospice Program is on, is being leased,
you are correct.
MS. PHILLIPS: Yes.
CHAIR MATEO: Your statement also includes, and you know that, that they, this include,
they need the moneys to provide payments for their lease. We are the landowners of
the lease.
MS. PHILLIPS: That's correct.
CHAIR MATEO: They pay a dollar a year, so, you know, be, be cautious with some of your
statements because it make it seem as if the dollar a year is providing burden to the
organization and it definitely is not.
MS. PHILLIPS: Yes.
CHAIR MATEO: So, I just wanted to provide clarification for some of your statements.
MS. PHILLIPS: That was not meant as for the lease, it at, it was bought, I mean they were
leasing the land, but for what the facility is what is the money was need for.
CHAIR MATEO: But it's not, that's not your statement and I'm not going to have a debate
with you.
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MS. PHILLIPS: No.
CHAIR MATEO: I just need to correct some of your incorrect statements.
MS. PHILLIPS: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much for your testimony.
MS. PHILLIPS: You're welcome.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, proceed.
COUNTY CLERK: Adrienne Laurion, followed by Aimee Bellard.
MS. ADRIENNE LAURION [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Aloha and good morning. My name is Adrienne Laurion. I am the Regional Director
for Special Olympics. I have had the honor to be in that position for the past
15 years. I am up here again, pleading and requesting that you restore the funding
to Special Olympics.
I recently sent to all of you last week, just some pictures of some of our athletes. We
recently, two weeks ago, sent a great group representing the island of Maui and
representing Special Olympics to the State games. One of our athletes Brandon
De Cambra, was on the front or second page the Star Bulletin or Star Advertiser,
excuse me.
It's been very difficult to try and explain to our athletes, families, coaches, the reason
behind the cut. You know, explaining it to athletes, people with special needs where,
why we are not getting funded, why we need to cut back, why we're not getting
uniforms, why we're not getting sports equipment. It, and, and that's fine, I
understand that we all needs these cuts.
What we did is, they put in their own words as I hope you guys all received and had a
chance to look at, in their own words what Special Olympics means to them and how
the program affects them. They all love our program very much.
And I understand that there are budget cuts and that we all need to tighten our belt.
And we've received 35 in the past, 35,000. We were cut down to 25,000 I actually
really appreciate that myself because I do believe that everybody needs to be cut
and everybody needs to look at ways to survive and, and make do with less.
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But I also want to remind you that we have never and will never ask for you to fund
our entire program. Our program is, budget is around 100,000. We've always asked
for about 25 percent because I feel that it's our responsibility to take care of our own
program.
If you've ever been to any of our fundraising events or seen us out in front of
Safeway, or heard about our Tip a Cop, or any of our events, we have our athletes
there because we do stress to them that it is their responsibility to take care of their
own program and that they need to go out there and fundraise. However, we do
have in our program some that in wheelchairs, some that are on severe medication
that, that they just cannot, that they just cannot be there and give as much as
everybody else can.
We have family's that do have financial needs, that just cannot contribute in the way
that we want. They have medicine they need to take care of. For us, we don't want
that to be a burden on them, we want their child to participate in sports, we want
them to make friends, we want them to have this life experience.
There are families that can afford, we ask for them to donate to our program and they
happily do because they know the benefits to their child.
I would like to say that Special Olympics-CHAIR MATEO: One minute to conclude.
MS. LAURION: Yes, we, Special Olympics is the only program on Maui that provides sports
training competitions. We are the only one. Not only do we do sports, but we try and
keep them healthier. Statistics show that 10 percent of special needs population is
employed, but 40 percent of the adult Special Olympics population is employed.
That being said, not only do we do sports, but we teach those with disabilities how to
relate in the community, how to be a team player, how to go out and be a
constructive citizen, citizen in our community. Okay, so please restore our funding
and I'd be happy, always keeping my door open for any questions or concerns.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you, Ms. Laurion.
MS. LAURION: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
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COUNTY CLERK: Aimee Bellard. Ms. Bellard will be followed by Kirsten VonTuglan.

MS. AIMEE BELLARD [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Good morning, it's, it's Aimee. I like Special Olympics. Please, please do, don't take
our funding for our Special Olympics . . . games. I like swimming, I like t-ball, I like to
spend time with my friends. I love bowling, swimming, t-ball, and I love, I like get
along with all my friends and I love bowling and . . . and sometimes I like play
basketball, basketball, bowling, and swimming, . . . games. I like to spend time with
my friends and I . . . Honolulu . . . State, and thank you for everything, I mean the
funding, I need the funding for our Special Olympics Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Kirsten VonTuglan, followed by Chris Mallory.

MS. KIRSTEN VONTUGLAN [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
I'm Kirsten VonTuglan and this is Chris Mallory. We're going to go together in the
interest of time. Respected Councilmembers, I'm very disappointed in the recent
decision to cut funding for Special Olympics. I'm aware that the County is currently
facing fiscal shortfalls; however, I'm asking for your support of the athletes in our
program.
Being a volunteer for Special Olympics has been an opportunity for me to see how
important this program is to someone who is afflicted with mental and or physical
disabilities. In the glow of their athletic accomplishment, I have seen an athlete's
self-confidence soar. I have seen life skills honed and a loving supportive
relationship develop between an athlete and volunteers of the community.
Our disabled community face many challenges that we don't. The Special Olympics
Program has been instrumental in helping people with disabilities develop skills to be
successful in our community as well as gain and maintain physical fitness.
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MR. CHRIS MALLORY [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
In order to continue benefiting the disadvantaged of our, disadvantaged of our
community, this program needs your support. Our athletes need your support, their
families need your support. The Special Olympics Maui must raise all the funding to
support the program. The majority of athletes are unable to participate in various
fundraising events due to their disabilities.
Maui County for over 20 years has been a major supporter in this worthy
organization. I respectfully ask to, you to reconsider your decision to cut the funding
for the Special Olympics Maui County. I realize the budget is tight and I appreciate
the time you have put into consider, considering Maui County's support of Special
Olympics Maui.
MS. VONTUGLAN: So all the coaches are volunteers and they give many hours to those
with special needs. And, they really benefit from this program, it's an amazing cause
and we humbly ask for reconsider.
MR. MALLORY: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you very much.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Valerie Manzo-Aguilar, followed by Joan Bellard.

MS. VALERIE MANZO-AGUILAR [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Good morning. I'm here in behalf of Special Olympics also. Please give them back
their money so they can continue to learn and be team oriented. They learn a lot of
skills by being with one another and they learn from their coaches how to play as a
team, how to get along.
And what they really love is when they go to the other islands for their trips. They
enjoy meeting new friends in the other islands and they really enjoy when they have
their finale like their dances and stuff. And they, you should see the joy on their
faces. If you ever attended any Special Olympics activity, you would know what I'm
talking about. Mahalo.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you very much.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Joan Bellard, followed by Scott Nunokawa.

MS. JOAN BELLARD [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Good morning. My name is Joan Bellard and I am Aimee's mom. And Aimee and I
have been involved in Special Olympics since Aimee's been eight years old, she's
now going to be 34.
And, I have followed and volunteered and done all of what is expected of a parent for
an athlete, for a child with a disability and I have watched not only my daughter grow
but I've watched all of the children of County of Maui grow who has disabilities.
We also have in our community, I don't know if anybody is aware, we have elderly
athletes in their 40's, 50's and 60's. And if it wasn't for Special Olympics, these
athletes would be just sit home either in their garage, in a chair or something, doing
nothing. We have a lot of children who are obese, and doing Special Olympics has
reduced their weight, get them moving, get them motivated.
I ask you please, do not cut their funding, restore it. They really need it. It's a, it's not
only for Maui, it's also for Molokai and Lanai, their athletes are also involved. So
please, if you could please reconsider and restore their funding so they can have
more time together with each other. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you, Ms. Bellard.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Scott Nunokawa followed by Larry Alexander.

MR. SCOTT NUNOKAWA [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Aloha, and good morning, Council Chair Mateo and Members of the Council. My
name is Scott Nunokawa, I'm here today to speak regarding the Ka Ipu Kukui
Program. I start, wanted to start by first of all thanking Council for the consideration
for the program and your efforts with regards to Ka Ipu Kukui. I also wanted to
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acknowledge the difficulty of our economic times and the truly the difficulty of you
folks job and deliberation and we truly thank you for that.
We're obviously hopeful that the County can figure out a way of getting their fiscal
results that, that are needed, while maintaining some sort of funding for Ka Ipu Kukui.
We also recognize that there are different kinds of expenditures, that there are
expenses and there are investments. And clearly expenses need to be dealt with
first and we also recognize that Ka Ipu Kukui is an investment. And we are
encouraged that Council has seen the value in investment, in Ka Ipu Kukui's
investment for a preferred Maui's future.
The Ka Ipu Kukui Leadership Program will continue its pursuit of strategies to make
the program self-sustaining. And we look forward to working with the County on this
important investment in the community and again we thank you folks for your
consideration.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you, Mr. Nunokawa.
MR. NUNOKAWA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Larry Alexander, followed by Shannon Hill.
MR. LARRY ALEXANDER [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Good morning, Council Chair, Councilmembers. I want to thank you all very much for
all the hard work and long hours you putting in the budget. I think you did a great job
and I want to also thank the comments from Mr., Vice-Chair, Mr. Pontanilla in the
paper as far as leaving the minimum property tax at $150. It really help, will help our
ranchers, our farmers, our vets, all of us on limited incomes, keep us in business.
Appreciate your, all hard work. Thank you very much for letting me testify today.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you, Mr. Alexander.
MR. ALEXANDER: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Shannon Hill. Ms. Hill will be followed by Sally Raisbeck.
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MS. SHANNON HILL [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Good morning. My name is Shannon Hill, and I am on the Board of Project Grad for
Maui High School. This year was the first year I was involved in the project. I got to
see firsthand the hard work, dedication, and passion of the Board and parents on all
of these teams. The efforts and hard work created a night filled with a memory these
graduates may not have ever lived to, to tell us about.
The County grant assists us in all our efforts to fundraise and supplement the night's
activities. I can tell you firsthand as a parent of a graduate and a chaperone at this
event that I was privileged and honored to see the night's festivities unfold. I will
continue to donate my time as I, I have a passion for this event. Considering to
continue to fund this project is so important to our Maui graduates.
This year Maui High had a record high attendance which tells us all that the students
also believe in this. I would like you to please reconsider these grants for our Maui
schools and I really appreciate your support. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you very much.
Okay, Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Sally Raisbeck. Mr. Chairman, Ms. Raisbeck will offer testimony on the
minutes of April 1, 2011; County Communication No. 11-158; County Communication
No. 11-165; County Communication No. 11-166; Bill 34; and Bill 12.
MS. SALLY RAISBECK [testifying on the Minutes of April 1, 2011; County Communication
No. 11-158, County Communication No. 11-165; County Communication No. 11-166;
Bill No. 34 (2011); and Bill No. 12 (2011)]:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have a lot of things to talk about and I'm going to talk
about them.
The minutes, you don't have your minutes posted online yet. I notice that they're
keeping up to date pretty well but you don't have them online. So, I'd like to see that
corrected.
The County Communication No. 11-158, I looked at yesterday at the, at the Clerk's
Office and I saw all these handwritten red things putting back a lot of good stuff and I
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hope that that, and together with, the when you get to Bill 34, you will put back the
good stuff because you really have a duty to look after these people that came out
today.
And Hospice, well I'm 81, my sister is 85, we, all the people we know are getting up
to needing Hospice and I would hate to see it interfered with. You'll be there
someday.
Anyway, the red amendments to County Communication 11-158 are all good except I
didn't see why, since you're cutting so much, you had to put back the 150,000 for the
Maui Visitors Bureau. They already get over three million, I don't think they need the
extra 150,000 when you're cutting Hospice, cutting MEO, cutting Project Graduation,
cutting Ka Ipu Kukui, cutting sidewalk safety, cutting Maui Fest. These people need it
and its their money you're taking away or giving to the Maui Visitors' Bureau, as I said
three million.
I think, I think people shouldn't come up here with hat in hand to flatter you and thank
you so much for what you do. I don't think you're doing the right thing right now and I
think that Corporation Counsel's Office is a large part of that. I think they're
becoming the third branch of government and they're telling everyone on the boards
and commissions what they can and can't do. I think it needs correction and I see
that you're intending for the, I believe the first time ever, to go into executive session
on a second reading of, of Bill 34.
Let me move on to another point. Another point would be County Communications,
can I have a green light again. Thank you. 11-165 and 11-166 where you're
proposing an amendment to the Charter to require Council approval of the Mayor's
appointment of a Planning Director and you're proposing Council approval of the
Mayor's appointment of the Director of Finance.
I've been watching the Charter Commission, I don't think you should put these up to
the voters to vote. I think the original Charter back in 1960's, 1965 or 7 sometime
there, that they very carefully separated Legislative functions from Executive
functions. And if the Mayor's going to be responsible for the Water Department, that
the Mayor's going to be responsible for the fiscal office for the execution of that, then
you shouldn't have approval. He should be able to appoint the people he wants. But
that will come up again, I assume that will be referred to committee.
Then we finally, well not finally, we come to Bill 34, the budget. I think it's appalling
that you would go into executive session for second and final reading of the budget.
Why, why do you presume that you're not going to debate anything you're going to
debate in public. Is it because the, the Corp. Counsel is going to tell you things that
you don't want other people to hear?
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And when we come to Bill 12, which is the height regulation, well, maybe you'll defer
that and take it up in committee again. But again I think it's obscene, literally
obscene that you would essentially pick up the, the terrible mistake that Mayor
Arakawa made on letting that, that cliff be created behind, behind people you're
supposed to be protect. And then now you're going to get them off the hook by
passing a height regulation that is retroactive and saying it's alright, it's alright to do
that.
I am totally, totally disgusted with the fact that you aren't doing your job of looking
after the people of Maui County. You're just too worried about fancy footwork by the
Corp. Counsel's Office to protect the Mayor and you from, and the County, yeah from
being sued. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased?
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, thank you, Ms. Raisbeck for being here and
providing us your testimony on the various items. I, I just want to make a correction
in one of your statement in regards to not taking away their money. Right now, you
know, the peoples' money is what we are responsible for, that we allocate to various
organizations through grants. So, when you say their money, actually it's the
people's money.
And in regards to the executive session for Bill No. 34, you know, really, what you
say is true, it should be in open session for this one, two particular items. And, I, I
believe in that, this is a budget process. But I, I don't know the intent of the executive
session as, as noted in this, today's agenda. So thank you.
MS. RAISBECK: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, additional concerns? Thank you very much,
Ms. Raisbeck.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Ray Turkovich, followed by Matthew Pulliam.
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MR. RAY TURKOVICH [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1
Aloha, good morning. I'm pleased that the Council and the Members here in the
gallery are permitting me to speak. May name is Ray Turkovich. I'm here
representing our senior citizens, disabled people, and the MEO project.
I'm here because our senior citizens are the residents who are the ones who built
Maui County for us. They spent so many years working, raising families, doing so
many things so that we have such a beautiful island that we have today in order to
enjoy. Over the past 20 years that I've been here, I've been able to be blessed with
meeting many of our senior citizens all of whom I adore.
They need our help to be able to make their golden years easier as good quality of
life, and as well a good quality of life. For many of them, the only way they can get
out to go to the doctors, to get medications, to go shopping, is with the MEO
Transportation. Many of them have mobility issues and it is very difficult for them to
get from their home to the street, let alone have to walk many blocks to get to a
public bus stop in order to get where they need to go.
If they lose the funds, it could result in a lack of making regular doctor visits, getting
medications, buying food, and other essential services. This could result in economic
losses and costs. If they do not get the proper medical care, they could result in
more severe health issues that will in turn cost more to treat. By not being able to
easily buy food, stores will see a decline in sales which will lead to a loss of income.
They gave us a sense of values and in their years they have given us much wisdom.
How can anyone sitting in this room deny them to have the best quality of life and
dignity in the final years that they are here.
Unless I'm mistaken and you can correct me, there was a $275,000 budget allotment
from our former Mayor Tavares set aside to build public bus sun shelters for the
public buses. That's been almost a year since that money was allocated. As of
today, not one nail, not one board has been pounded to build this sun shelter. We
don't need them right now, we can wait ten minutes for the bus, get on a nice air
conditioned bus and there you go.
This money is transportation money set aside for transportation services. It can be
used for the public bus, it can be used by MEO because they are both County
transportation services. To me it's logical, reallocate the money of 275,000 where it's
needed now to MEO so that they can continue to do the work that they so
desperately need to do to provide these wonderful services for our senior citizens
and for the disabled who rely on them to get to work. I just want to quickly follow-up.
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CHAIR MATEO: One minute to conclude.
MR. TURKOVICH: Quickly follow-up with just a personal story. One of the many seniors I
know, wonderful woman named Adie from Lahaina. Unfortunately her husband is at
Hale Makua in Kahului for life. The only way she has to go and visit him is by the
MEO. And like clockwork, three days in a row she is on that bus to go and spend
time with her husband. Could anybody here sitting in this room see themselves
being in that position and being denied the opportunity to spend time with the person
that you love the most in the world and have that taken away from you?
I urge all nine of you Councilmembers to change your vote, if not all nine, at least
one. Thank you very much for your time and allowing me to speak.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased?
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, sir for being here.
MR. TURKOVICH: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: You know, providing us, excuse me, for providing us with your
testimony. You know as far as the bus transportation, as far as the bus
transportation for the seniors, the youth and alike, we haven't cut any of those
funding. You still continue to utilize MEO as a means of transportation for, you know,
special needs.
The money that you talk about, you know, it's not 275, it, it was, if it was appropriated
by the last Administration, and, and I'm sure there's a project that's going on and
what I'll do is I'll follow-up to ensure you and the public that we are actually building
bus shelters.
I do know that we already started construction at Kaahumanu Center and we had
already identified the location for future bus stops throughout Central Maui. So the
money MEO is asking for is for their transient center that they want to locate at
Puunene.
So I assure you, transportation is still being provided. We haven't cut the funding for
that transportation system for MEO, so I, I just wanted to correct some of your
statement. Thank you.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2011
Page 22

MR. TURKOVICH: I appreciate you doing that and I just want to follow-up by saying that in,
in any regards.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Turkovich, that, there's no need to respond at this time,
Mr. Pontanilla was just providing comment.
One more question, Mr. Turkovich.
MR. TURKOVICH: Yes.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Turkovich.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Mr. Turkovich, thank you for coming. I wanted to follow-up on Mr. Pontanilla's
comments the, if you go down Waiale Drive, I can, you can look at a bus shelter that
is in process. So that money is being spent and the bus shelters are going up. It's
not as fast as we would like to see but the, the concrete work has already been done,
the bike racks have been put up and they're getting ready to put up the benches and
the shelter so. That's just one of the four that, that, that money was going and that,
the other three are also in about the same state of repair. So you can take a look, it's
on Waiale Drive just a, just before the .. .
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, further discussion? Thank you very much,
Mr. Turkovich.
MR. TURKOVICH: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Matthew Pulliam, followed by Bill Pulliam.
MR. MATTHEW PULLIAM [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
My name is Matthew Pulliam. I'm a, in Special Olympics and I'm an athlete. And I'm
really starting to get to learn how to play sports. I used to have no friends, and I
have, now I have like, like almost every island I have friends from. And I just love
playing sports and I finally teaching me myself to be sportsmanship, good
sportsmanship. And I just like playing sports and please, please don't take this
Special Olympics away from us and my friends. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you very much.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Bill Pulliam, followed by May Fujiwara.

MR. BILL PULLIAM [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
My name is Bill Pulliam, I'm the father of Matthew who just spoke and I'm kind of glad
he went ahead of me cause it, it'll kind of make some of the things that I say a little bit
more clear to you.
We've been involved in Special Olympics since Matthew was eight year old, eight
years old, just like Aimee was, he's now 17. Over these past nine years, I have
served as a, a coach, a volunteer, and a chaperone for the program so I feel I'm
pretty well qualified to speak about the benefits of Special Olympics.
Matthew, like many of the athletes involved has multiple disabilities, both
developmentally and physically. In addition to his autism he has a bone disease that
resulted in six broken bones before he was age ten and he's been a patient of
Shriner's Hospital for the last eight years. He was a very . . child with severe
behaviors and he couldn't read until he got into the third grade.
He now competes and succeeds in several sports with Special Olympics including
softball, track, and soccer. He has learned to surf and plays golf to a ten handicap if
you can believe that. He, his behaviors have improved dramatically and he now
reads at functional levels, works part-time at Longs and has learned to drive a car.
In other words, he has transformed from what many would perceive as a burden on
society to a confident, athletic, independent teenager who has normal thoughts and
desires with plans to be a positive force and influence in our community. That
transformation could not have happened without participating in Special Olympics. It
provided him with a platform to grow athletically, socially and emotionally.
He never would have been given that opportunity in the mainstream. I know that for
a fact because my family tried several times, several different organizations, through
the school and through the community, but they just turn a blind eye to special needs
of people which not only breaks your heart but is really tough on the self-esteem of
our athletes.
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We just returned from our State games at UH where Matthew's softball team earned
a silver medal. Matthew plays shortstop on the team and made several great plays in
the field and actually won our first game with a bases clearing double with two outs in
the bottom of the last inning. Our team stormed the field and congratulated each
other just like they won the World Series. It was awesome.
Taking away funding for Special Olympics Maui would make scenes like this less
likely and strip us with special, and bring, would strip us of the opportunity to bring
more people with special needs into the program. These guys seek acceptance just
like you and I. Without our help, they cannot grow and fulfill their dreams and end up
failing, or falling through the cracks and living off entitlement for the rest of their lives.
Those of us who do, who do give their time to, to help these people find success and
feel good about themselves are viewed as heroes to them. Think about that, heroes,
just for doing-CHAIR MATEO: One minute to conclude.
MR. PULLIAM: --what God put us on this earth to do, treat people the way we want them to
treat us. Find a way to reinstate these funds to keep their dream alive and you guys
will be heroes to them as well. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you, Mr. Pulliam.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: May Fujiwara , followed by Todd Craine.

MS. MAY FUJIWARA [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Good morning, Council Chair Mateo and Members of the Council. My name is May
Fujiwara and I'm speaking on my behalf and on behalf of the Lahaina Honolua Senior
Citizen's Club. Thank you for allowing me to testify.
We know how difficult it has been in these trying times and the countless hours you
have put into the budget process. We commend you and appreciate all the time and
effort you have put into formulating the County's budget. We do however, humbly
ask you to put back into the budget the $250,000 for the much needed MEO's transit
facility. The land is available and what better time than now to put many of our
unemployed carpenters, electricians, and other tradesmen back to work.
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I personally could support Councilmember Baisa's recommendation to raise the
minimum property tax to $200 because of the number of non-profits and other
projects this would help. And thank you again for your consideration and for allowing
me to speak.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased?
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair, and thank you, Ms. Fujiwara for
being here. I just want you to know that that $200 proposal failed, so it is not on the
table anymore; however, I will be making another proposal today to leave the
minimum tax alone and still manage to fund these programs. So, stay tuned. Thank
you.
MS. FUJIWARA: Thank you.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO:
Ms. Fujiwara.

Members, further, further questions? Thank you,

Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Todd Craine , followed by Buck Joiner.
MR. TODD CRAINE [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Good morning. Thanks for the opportunity to speak today. I'm Todd Craine, the new
Democratic Party Chair for Maui County and a soon to be certified Special Ed
teacher. While I understand we all need to share in the pain of this economy, it pains
me to see cuts to any of these fine programs.
I've been working with our outstanding special citizens for several years now, we
can't see cuts to worthwhile community programs like these. It reflects poorly on our
ability to accommodate and care for those who may not have a voice. It's a poor
choice and I urge our Councilmembers to find a valid compromise such as that of Ms.
Baisa's and that provides our community with the services they desire and safe
sidewalks for our island's students.
This is why you've been elected and we expect you to do what's pono. Things are
tough all over, but this is vindictive, shameful and harmful to our society. When my
special friends need funds they sell plants and produce they grew, wash cars, and
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hold bake sales. While I'd certainly pay $30 or more to see our Councilmembers
wash my car for a cause, I'd rather help.
Honorable Councilmembers, please do what you can to insure these wonderful
programs only see funding increases. Thank you very much for your time.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of this, testi,
testimony rephrased? Thank you very much.
MR. CRAINE: Thanks so much.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Buck Joiner, followed by Michele Del Rosario.

MR. BUCK JOINER [testifying on Bill No. 34 (2011)1:
Aloha kakou, Buck Joiner, speaking as an individual.
The visitor industry is
exploding. Just a few months ago there was an article by the editor, an editorial by
the editor of the Maui News, where did they all come from because the editor couldn't
find a room for a guest that was arriving from off-island.
Just six days ago, there was this article in the Maui News and it stated that our visitor
count is up 11 percent, that the spending is up 20 percent and let me quote from, for
you "with arrivals and expenditures currently on pace with our peek years of 206,
2006 and 2007".
We need to diversify our economy. How many times have you have heard that said,
yeah. And many of you have said it yourself. And yet what do you do? You keep
putting money into the visitor industry because you want more waiters, people to cut
the lawns, and people to change the beds.
This body is giving an increase for the Maui Visitors Bureau while denying the needy.
The Maui Visitors Bureau is a trade representation organization that is not supported
by the trade. You recall, previously I had an 11 foot long list of businesses that
advertise on the Maui Visitors Bureau website but don't give a dime in support to
MVB.
I've complained often about MVB having a lack of accountability and excess funding.
The Executive Director of the Maui Visitors Bureau makes twice as much as each of
you do. Makes more than the Chief of Police, more than the Mayor, more than the
Governor. And yet the Executive Director sits in this Council Chambers all day, every
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day of a budget hearing. How can that be justified? You take from the poor and you
give to the rich.
Maui Fest, this is us, that's, that's a festival that is held in Molokai and in Hana and it
is us. It is virtually all Hawaiian and you say no, we're going to give the money to the
rich.
Special Olympics, I painted the boxes, the podiums for the Special Olympics and I
put special effort to make them the absolute best in the world, and they are beautiful.
And you guys say no, nothing to Special Olympics.
Hospice has a modest request and a small percentage of a very necessary facility
and you say no, give to the rich.
Who owns the hotels? Well let's just take the Kaanapali Beach Hotel because you
have a representative here and you can ask him. The most Hawaiian hotel, oh,
doesn't that touch your heart, is owned by the Chinese, Sir Run Run Shaw, okay, out
of Hong Kong. You say no to the citizens of Maui, and yes to the very, very rich.
CHAIR MATEO: One minute to conclude.
MR. JOINER: My proposal, I see it. My proposal, I ask that you take 90 percent from the
Maui Visitors Bureau, take $3 million out of that budget and use it to support the
citizens, support the Special Olympics and support Hospice. The visitor industry can
support the MVB with pocket change. Please help those who cannot help
themselves, the young, the poor, the infirmed, and the dying. Pono, do what is right.
Mahalo.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Joiner. Members, is there a need to have any part of the
testimony rephrased? Thank you, Mr. Joiner.
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Michele Del Rosario. Mr. Chairman, Ms. Del Rosario is the last
individual to have submitted a, a request to offer testimony.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.

MS. MICHELE DEL ROSARIO (testifying on Committee Report No. 11-49):
Good morning, Chair and Councilmembers. My name is Michele Del Rosario and I'm
here this morning as a homeowner at the Cottages at Kulamalu. I am here to testify
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against your allocation of $3.865 million for the purchase of 4.179 acres of land in our
community at Kulamalu.
We have many needs and you are asking our community to make many sacrifices
this budget period. I would like to see this 3.865 million reallocated to existing
housing needs that are available in our community for a variety of programs. Either
allocation to the current HUD Rental Voucher Program where we have hundreds of
people on waiting lists, some waiting six and seven years for assistance. Or to use
this money for down payment assistance programs for people to be able to buy and
purchase affordable housing in our community, and or specifically earmark this
money for the HUD Homeownership Program and provide direct funding for those
purchases.
I support all of the nonprofits here that have been cut. It's embarrassing as a
member of our community to think that we are going to cut Hospice, our kupunas, the
people we should be supporting and giving the most respect to. Our rural
communities, transportation issues, our seniors, Special Olympics, they're all worthy
issues and we do have to make choices.
But I am here as one member of the community to say we should put people before
projects. And this money of almost $4 million is to purchase a piece of raw land that
cannot be utilized this year or next year and we have current needs. I would like to
see this housing, affordable housing fund dollars put to immediate use in our
community. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need to have any part of the testimony
rephrased? Thank you, Ms. Del Rosario.
Members, Ms. Del Rosario was the last individual that had signed up to provide
testimony to the Council this morning. The Chair will offer anyone in the gallery the
opportunity to provide testimony to the Council if you hadn't already done so, please
advance to the podium. Members, no one advance at this time, with no objections,
the Chair will close public testimony. Any objections?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, so ordered.
Members, the Chair will, will ask the body if you would like to take a very short recess
at this point in time. Is five minutes short enough. Thank you, this Council will stand
in recess for five minutes.
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(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 10:15 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 10:34 A.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui, regular meeting of June 7, 2011 will
reconvene.
Members, we had closed public testimony, we also are in receipt of several written
testimonies. With no objections, we will accept them into the record. Any
objections?
THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, WRITTEN TESTIMONY
RECEIVED FROM THE FOLLOWING WERE MADE A PART
OF THE RECORD OF THIS MEETING:
1.
2.
3.

Kathleen V. Phillips;
Laureen S. Borge; and
Robert and Gael Ito.

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, so ordered.
Mr. Clerk, let's proceed.

MINUTES
The minutes of the Council of the County of Maui's regular meeting of April 1, 2011 was
presented at this time.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I MOVE TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR
COUNCIL MEETING OF APRIL 1, 2011.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
I SECOND, MR. CHAIR.
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CHAIR MATEO: We have a motion made by Mr. Pontanilla, second by Mr. Victorino to
approve the minutes of the regular meeting of August 1, 2011 [sic].
Mr. Pontanilla, discussion.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No discussion, sir.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, all those in favor of the motion to approve the
minutes of the regular meeting of April 1, 2011 signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no".
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried, with nine "ayes".
Mr. Clerk.
The following Committee Reports were presented.

COMMITTEE REPORTS
COMMITTEE REPORT
11-49
NO.
- BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE:
Recommending the following:
1

That Bill No.
35 (2011), entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
AMENDING APPENDIX A OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2011 BUDGET FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI AS IT PERTAINS TO PART II, SPECIAL PURPOSE
REVENUES - SCHEDULE OF REVOLVING/SPECIAL FUNDS FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2011, AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND, KAHOMA PROJECT,
PURCHASE OF LAND TO BE USED FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING, AND
KULAMALU COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION" be PASSED ON FIRST
READING and be ORDERED TO PRINT;

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2011
Page 31

2.

That Resolution No. 11-57 , entitled "AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF
3 LOTS IN THE KULAMALU COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION PURSUANT TO
CHAPTER 3.44, MAUI COUNTY CODE" be ADOPTED; and

3.

That County Communication No. 11-91, from the Director of Housing and
Human Concerns be FILED.

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I MOVE TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS SET FORTH
IN COMMITTEE REPORT NO. 11-49.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla and second by Mr. Hokama to adopt the
recommendations in Committee Report No. 11-49.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
The report details Committee review and recommendation of a proposed bill and
companion revised resolution to facilitate amending the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget to
provide for the addition of proviso under the Affordable Housing Fund for $3,865,000
to purchase three lots comprising approximately 4.179 acres in the Kulamalu
Commercial Subdivision for the dedicated provision of affordable housing.
Your Committee deemed the property with entitled available water source suitable to
accommodate greatly needed affordable housing inventory in the Upcountry area.
Further the bill amends fund provisos to include deletion of $1 million for the Kahoma
Project deemed not ready to proceed at this time and deleting the $2 million proviso
for the purchase of land for affordable housing in which this Kulamalu purchase
addresses.
The Committee Report recommends passage of the bill, revised resolution to
authorize purchase and filing of the County Communication. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion? All those in
favor of the motion to adopt the recommendations in Committee Report No. 11-49,
signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried with nine "ayes".
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, for the record BILL NO. 35 (2011) and RESOLUTION
NO. 11-57.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, proceeding with County Communications.
The following County Communications were presented.

COUNTY COMMUNICATIONS
NO.

11-157

- MIKE WHITE, COUNCILMEMBER,
(dated May 31, 2011)

Proposing amendments to Bill No. 33 (2011) entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
RELATING TO THE CAPITAL PROGRAM FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING
JUNE 30, 2012".
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Mr. Clerk, will you please call up County Communication
11-158 as well.
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NO.

11-158

- MIKE WHITE, COUNCILMEMBER,
(dated May 31, 2011)

Proposing amendments to Bill No. 34 (2011) entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
RELATING TO THE OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2011 TO JUNE 30, 2012".
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, County Communication Nos. 11-157 and County
Communication 11-158, references proposed amendments to Bills No. 33 and
34 (2011). With no objections, both County Communications will be taken up during
considerations of both Bills 33 and 34, during second and final read. Are there any
objections.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, so ordered.
Mr. Clerk, let's proceed.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, the following County Communications are recommended
for referral to the following committees as noted.
NO.

11-159

- MIKE WHITE, COUNCILMEMBER,
(dated May 27, 2011)

Transmitting a draft bill entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
SECTION 3.48.450, MAUI COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO HOME EXEMPTION
QUALIFICATION".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 11-159 be referred to the
Budget and Finance Committee.
NO.

11-160

- GLENN T. CORREA, DIRECTOR OF PARKS AND RECREATION,
(dated May 25, 2011)

Transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING A GRANT OF A LEASE
OF COUNTY RECREATIONAL SPACE TO MAUI ECONOMIC
OPPORTUNITY, INC.".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 11-160 be referred to the
Economic Development, Agriculture, and Recreation Committee.
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NO.

11-161

- GLENN T. CORREA, DIRECTOR OF PARKS AND RECREATION,
(dated May 25, 2011)

Transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "AUTHORIZING A GRANT OF A LEASE
OF COUNTY RECREATIONAL SPACE TO BOYS & GIRLS CLUBS OF MAUI, INC."
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 11-161 be referred to the
Economic Development, Agriculture, and Recreation Committee.

NO.

11-162

- ELLE COCHRAN, COUNCILMEMBER,
(dated May 27, 2011)

Relating to Recommendations from the County of Maui Integrated Solid Waste
Management Plan and from the Solid Waste Resource Advisory Committee.
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 11-162 be referred to the
Infrastructure Management Committee.

NO.

11-163

- JO-ANN T. RIDAO, DIRECTOR OF HOUSING AND HUMAN
CONCERNS,
(dated May 16, 2011)

Transmitting a letter from John Stubbart, Lanai Water Company, Inc. in support of the
County of Maui's Lanai Affordable Housing Project.
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 11-164 be referred to the
Policy Committee.
(COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 11-163 WAS FILED LATER
IN THIS MEETING. See pages 35 and 36 for discussion.)
NO.

11-164

- WILLIAM SPENCE, PLANNING DIRECTOR,
(dated May 19, 2011)

Pursuant to Chapter 2.80.B, Maui County Code, requesting that the Council initiate
the appointment of members to the Molokai and Lanai Community Plan Advisory
Committee.
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 11-164 be referred to the
Policy Committee.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2011
Page 35

NO.

11-165

- DANNY A. MATEO, COUNCIL CHAIR,
(dated May 27, 2011)

Transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "PROPOSING AN AMENDMENT TO
THE REVISED CHARTER OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI (1983), AS AMENDED, TO
REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL OF THE MAYOR'S APPOINTMENT OF THE
PLANNING DIRECTOR".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 11-165 be referred to the
Policy Committee.
NO.

11-166

- DANNY A. MATEO, COUNCIL CHAIR,
(dated May 27, 2011)

Transmitting a proposed resolution entitled "PROPOSING AN AMENDMENT TO
THE REVISED CHARTER OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI (1983), AS AMENDED, TO
REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL OF THE MAYOR'S APPOINTMENT OF THE
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE".
The recommended action is that County Communication No. 11-166 be referred to the
Policy Committee.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, is there a request for consideration at
this time?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Hokama.

DISCUSSION AND ACTION RELATING TO
COUNTY COMMUNICATION NO. 11-163
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I would request.
I MOVE THAT COUNTY COMMUNICATION 11-163, BE
FILED.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
SECOND.
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CHAIR MATEO: The motion on the floor Members, made by Mr. Hokama and second by
Mr. Carroll to file County Communication No. 11-163.
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. Chairman, this is just notification to
Council of Lanai Water Company's position currently on the County application
before the State Land Use Commission which we will have tomorrow morning at, on
Lanai, Chairman and Members, regarding our reclassification request from
agricultural to urban, to be able to develop 73 acres for affordable housing for the
island of Lanai.
I, I, I reviewed the letter, it is just a regular, regular conformity requirement Chairman,
there's no further Council action required and therefore I believe this motion to file is
appropriate.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, further discussion. All those in favor
of the motion to file County Communication No. 11-163, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no".
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried.
Members, further considerations? Seeing none, with no objections, Members, each
of the communications will be referred to the respective committees as recognized by
the Clerk. Any objections?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, so ordered.
Mr. Clerk, proceed.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, we are at ordinances, second and final reading.
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CHAIR MATEO: Okay, thank you.
Members, before getting into ordinances for second and final reading, the Chair
would like to recommend that the Council consider Bills No. 24 through 34 in the
following manner.
If there are no objections with respect to Bill 24, we will take up this bill after Bill 34.
With respect to Bills 25 through 30, which are intergovernmental issues, the Chair will
at that time entertain a single motion to pass Bills 25 through 30 on second and final
reading. Thereafter, the Chair, with no objections, will take Bill No. 32, the Lapsed
Bond Bill out of order and following action on Bill 32, the, with no objections, we will
ask the Clerk to place before the Council in the following order Bill No. 34, Operating
Budget; Bill No. 33, the Capital Program; Bill No. 31, the Bond Authorization; and
Bill 24, Minimum Real Property Tax.
And the Chair makes these recommendations in order to facilitate the anticipated
amendments that will be offered to Bill 34, Bill 33, and possibly on Bill 31. Members,
if there are no objections, the Chair would like to proceed in this manner. Is there
any objections?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, so ordered.
Mr. Clerk, let's proceed.

ORDINANCES
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
25 (2011)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY
OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A LOAN
FROM THE DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING LOAN FUND FOR THE
OLINDA WATER TREATMENT PLANT-RELINING OF THE 8.5 MG
SEDIMENTATION BASIN,
MAKAWAO-PUKALANI-KULA COMMUNITY PLAN AREA,
FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET ORDINANCE
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Chairman, I move to pass Bill No. 25. Mr. Chairman, can
we take Bill No. 25 through Bill No. 30 in one motion?
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. The Chair will recognize that motion as soon as Mr. Clerk
calls up Bills 26, 27, 28, 29, and 30.
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO. 26 (2011)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF
MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE KAHULUI
FORCE MAIN REPLACEMENT, WAILUKU-KAHULUI COMMUNITY
PLAN AREA, FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET ORDINANCE
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO. 27 (2011)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF
MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE WAILUKU
FORCE MAIN REPLACEMENT (VALVE BOX TO WASTEWATER RECLAMATION
FACILITY), WAILUKU-KAHULUI COMMUNITY PLAN AREA,
FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET ORDINANCE
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO. 28 (2011)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY OF
MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR A STATE
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL REVOLVING FUND LOAN FOR THE
COUNTYWIDE PUMP STATION RENOVATIONS,
FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET ORDINANCE
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ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO. 29 (2011)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY
OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FORA LOAN
FROM THE DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING LOAN FUND FOR THE
WAILUKU WELL - DEVELOPMENT PROJECT, WAILUKU-KAHULUI COMMUNITY
PLAN AREA, FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET ORDINANCE
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO. 30 (2011)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF THE COUNTY
OF MAUI TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FORA LOAN
FROM THE DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING LOAN FUND FOR THE
ULUNIU ROAD AND EWA PLACE WATERLINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT,
KIHEI-MAKENA COMMUNITY PLAN AREA,
FISCAL YEAR 2012 BUDGET ORDINANCE
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I MOVE TO PASS BILLS NOS. 25 THROUGH 30 ON SECOND
AND FINAL READING.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla and second by Mr. Hokama to pass on
second and final reading Bills No. 25 through 30 (2011).
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. No more discussion on those.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
to pass on second and final reading Bills No. 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, and 30 (2011),
signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried with nine "ayes".
Mr. Clerk.
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
32 (2011)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING THAT PART OF
THE PROCEEDS OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE
COUNTY OF MAUI HERETOFORE ISSUED IS IN EXCESS
OF THE AMOUNTS REQUIRED FOR THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH
SUCH BONDS WERE INITIALLY ISSUED, OR MAY OR SHOULD
NOT BE APPLIED TO THOSE PURPOSES, AND DIRECTING
SUCH PROCEEDS TO OTHER PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
OR AUTHORIZED PURPOSES OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I MOVE TO PASS BILL NO. 32 ON SECOND AND FINAL
READING.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
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CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, second by Mr. Hokama to pass Bill
No. 32 on second and final reading.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No discussion.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, further discussion? All those in favor of the motion that Bill
No. 32 (2011) pass on second and final reading, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried with nine "ayes".
Mr. Clerk.

ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO. 34 (2011)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO THE
OPERATING BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2011 TO JUNE 30, 2012
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I MOVE TO PASS BILL NO. 34 ON SECOND AND FINAL
READING.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
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CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla and second by Mr. Hokama that Bill
No. 34 (2011) pass on second and final reading.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman, no discussion.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE TO AMEND BILL NO. 34 (2011) RELATING TO THE
OPERATING BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012 AS
INDICATED IN THE RAMSEYER FORMAT ON THE MARKEDUP COPY OF BILL IN COMMUNICATION NO. 11-158.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
SECOND, MR. CHAIR.
CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. White, second by Mr. Victorino to amend. And
Members once again we are referencing County Communication No. 11-158, relative
to the amendment being proposed by Mr., Mr. White.
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
You know, as we've discussed over many weeks that we've been doing the budget,
there are many ways of balancing this document so that our social services,
economic development initiatives, public safety and building projects and other needs
are not impacted. And, we've discussed recognizing additional transient
accommodation taxes as I've suggested. There have been other sug, suggestions
by others that we reduce the self-insurance and other post-employment obligation
fund expenses to cover some of the items that we've been hearing testimony about
today.
I understand my colleague's concerns with some of these approaches and I'm
proposing an amendment that hopefully can be considered somewhat of a
compromise.
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My proposal reinstates funding for all the important programs such as the MEG
Transit Center, Project Graduation, Special Olympics, Hospice Maui, the replacement
of the Kenolio Building, funding for economic development initiatives, and so on that
are so important to our small towns and, and so many other important programs that
were reduced at our May 24, meeting.
This amendment returns the budget to the original form to which we all agreed prior
to first reading. The funding would be provided by increasing the minimum tax from
150 to $300 as was originally in the bill. This rate increase could be temporary if this
body acts decisively on other measures. I'm keenly aware of the concerns about
increasing the minimum tax as expressed by public testimony, especially from
ranchers and veterans who are already facing challenges to make ends meet.
Those who testified on keeping the minimum tax at 150 including veterans and
ranchers, we heard you loud and clear. There are ways that I believe this body can
move to take care of those issues.
After the budget is passed at this, at, in the fashion it was presented at first reading,
two measures of the Budget and Finance Committee we'll be addressing will likely
generate enough added revenues to allow for the minimum tax to be returned to
$150 by the middle of 2012, possibly eliminating the payment for the second half of
the year.
These two bills would tighten the process of qualification and verification of Maui
property owners claiming to be using their land for agricultural purposes when they
are not and those claiming to be homeowners when they are not. Simply put, instead
of going after those paying minimum tax, we would be generating revenues from
those who should have been paying all along, rather than asking those that are of
lesser means.
The agricultural measure is a bill submitted by Councilmember Victorino and is
currently in the Budget and Finance Committee. The proposed agricultural use
dedication bill encourages bona fide agriculture by requiring property to be dedicated
for specific long-term agricultural use in order to qualify for the agricultural
assessment.
In the current form of the homeowner's exemption ordinance, it allows you to qualify
for the exemption simply by stating that you have an intent to reside in the home.
This leaves the Property Tax Division very little way of moving forward and enforcing
the intent of the law. There is no requirement to, to prove that you actually reside
here in Maui.
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With that, it means that it is easier to obtain a homeowner's exemption than to get the
residential rate for playing golf at Waiehu Golf Course. Homeowners' exemption bill
was developed by the Real Property Tax Division and has been submitted, or has
been transmitted on today's agenda. This bill will require homeowners to show proof
of fulltime residency with a tax return or other supporting documents.
According to the Tax Division, there are an estimated 2,800 people who have
claimed the homeowner's exemption but may not actually qualify for that exemption.
The intent of the law is to protect legitimate agricultural uses and provide a break to
legitimate homeowners. But there are those who have worked their way around the
system. By bringing these two areas into compliance with, in the intent of the law,
the tax department estimates that revenues from these two measures will dwarf the
$2.4 million generated by the $150 increase in the minimum tax.
With the passage of these two measures, the Property Tax Department has assured
me that additional revenues can be generated almost immediately. It is my hope that
both the home exemption bill and the ag use dedication bill will be swiftly considered
and passed by the Budget and Finance Committee.
While there is no guarantee, I would hope that this additional revenue as its collected
by the County and the, that the Administration would be willing to propose a budget
amendment during the first half of the fiscal year recognizing the additional revenues
and amend the minimum tax from 300 back to 150 before the second property,
second half property tax bills are sent out.
I hope this is a compromise that you all can support as we address the concerns of
our taxpayers and provide tax subsidies only for those who truly qualify for them,
which will ultimately allow us to provide funding for important programs that support
our community.
I urge you all to consider this amendment. Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. White. Members, further discussion on the proposal.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
While that is a very unique compromise solution, it has some merit, I think, only
because it will hold the proverbial gun to our own heads to get some much needed
legislation done. The only thing that I have a little bit of concern on is that the
Mayor's Office would follow through. I, I think they would, but if we did something like
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this, then it would be up to this body to immediately make right some of the situations
that have been going on, along far too long in this, in this County. So I, I could
reluctantly support this only because it will force us to do some much needed work
that's been done.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Members, further discussion?
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ah, yes, thank you very much, Chair, for the opportunity to
comment on the amendment. I understand what Member White is trying to do and
initially, of course, I was very supportive of the maximum, of raising it to 300. What I
could not and still do not, you know, support is the idea of the cuts that came with
that decision because I don't think they were good cuts.
What I'm concerned about is I understand and I totally understand this need about
holding our feet to the fire and making us get things done, cause you know,
sometimes we tend to get caught up in a lot of things and things hang around for a
while. That's been pretty much, you know, the way we operate. Every now and then
it's amazing though, we do get something through because we feel it's really
important.
What I'm concerned about is timing. You know, we did hear, and we did all try to
accommodate the folks that came to explain to us what the unintended
consequences of raising the minimum to $300 might do to them. And my concern
about timing is that, you know, if we pass this and it goes into effect on July 1, then I,
I don't know about anybody else but I get property tax bill in August and I'm supposed
to pay it real quick which I do and others will receive that bill.
And frankly, I just don't see this body being able to do anything about that so that first
bill will be due and people will have to come up with half of whatever they owe based
on, on whatever it is. And, it could cause a lot of harm in the meantime.
But I do totally support the idea of what Member White is talking about requiring a
State tax return, I think that should have been done a long time ago because there is
a tremendous amount of potential revenue there.
I personally would prefer to leave the amount at 150 and still require that we get on it
here. So this is a tough one for me.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Members, further discussion?
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
You know, as gallant as what Mr. White had proposed, you know, in, in, in my case,
you know, I will continue to support the $150 as the minimum tax. I know we went
through a process that was mind provoking and, you know, got all of us thinking in
different ways in trying to provide services to those organizations that we had
removed funding.
But let me tell you something, you know, everybody talk about Hospice. You know,
in, in my heart, you know I understand the need for Hospice here on Maui because
last year, towards the end of the year, I had a personal happening on Oahu, my mom
died in Hospice. So, for me to remove Hospice at that time, couple weeks ago,
wasn't the easiest decision for me. And I hope all of you understand that because I
look at our responsibility as Members of the Council, you know to be fiscal
responsible in things that we do. You know, Hospice could come next year, request
for funding. I understand that they require half a million dollars and this would have
provided, you know $250,000 for their capital improvement project.
And, and Special Olympics, you know, I, I hear the people that come up, testify on
behalf of Special Olympics. We receive a lot of emails. But let me tell you Chairman,
you know, it, it was another difficult decision to, to make because I do have friends
that have kids that participate in Special Olympics. And it wasn't again the easiest
decision for me to make.
Even cutting out, you know, our capital improvement projects for the County of Maui,
you know, that, that is something that, you know, we should take care first, the needs
of this County.
So the list goes on and on in regards to why the $150 as minimum tax. But, you
know, I just want to share some of my personal comments in regards to some of the
organizations that are, are here today, you know, trying to, advocating for, for their
organization. And you know what really surprised me is that, Chairman, you know,
you and I had a conversation in regards to, you know, getting information from the
State.
And, you know, we hear about MEO transportation center $250,000. We hear
matching fund, and that's not the case, that's not the case. They have $4 million like
you say sitting on the Governor's desk for signature. I'm sure they can move forward
once the Governor signs on their particular project.
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And, and to begin with, you know, this Chair had mentioned going forward that I, I
wasn't concentrating on capital, nonprofit capital improvement projects. Basically this
Chairman looked at the real needs, you know, food, shelter, core services for the
needy here in our community. You talk about youth and senior transportation, we
provide those transportation. We didn't cut anything, in fact we added some of the, to
some of the programs needed services.
So for me, $300 you know at one time I could agree, but again Chairman, I'll live with
the $150. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I, I think Mr. Carroll had raised his hand first.
CHAIR MATEO: Excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I will yield to Mr. Carroll. No, no problem, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. I become invisible sometimes, Chair.
Thank you. We got into this because all nine Members, we supported originally,
Mr. Pontanilla's proposal to raise the minimum tax to $300 and it seemed reasonable
and we looked at it and we all supported it. We did it rather quickly and none of us
saw the ramifications that it would have for our agricultural community, veterans and
some others. All of us saw what was needed and it was obvious that we needed to
do something and either reduce it back until we can make appropriate changes to
agricultural law to have them taxed at a more appropriate rate and do the things that
have been discussed that is necessary.
Okay, we're fine so far. But then we have to, how to handle the difference when we
brought it back to $150. We got into this because we didn't know what the impacts
were. My concern is now we have cuts over here in different organizations, but there
has been really no discussion of the impacts that the cuts are going to have on these
different organizations. We did not have the time, we did not have the ability
because of the eleventh hour, fifty-nine minute, how it came up.
And I'm really concerned about these impacts. They can be just as bad as the
proposed $300 minimum tax on people. We have not had time to consider it. I don't
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think we should be gambling with these things. We approved these things because
they felt they had merit and now we are going to disapprove them just because we
are looking for a dollar. I don't think it's appropriate.
I am concerned about the motion on the floor, for the follow through but it's things
that we have to do and we should do anyway. So I will be supporting the motion.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Baisa. Oh, excuse me, Chair, Chair recognize Mr. Victorino first and
then we'll get back to Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ms. Baisa, I will yield to her. I'm in, I'm in no rush, we
ain't going nowhere real soon sir. So I'm in no rush to say what I need to say. Go
ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, Chair, my question is a procedural one that might be
helpful. I'm trying to give, get, wrap, wrap my arms around how this is going to work.
We have Member White's amendment on the floor and we have other amendments.
If Member White's amendment is voted on and we increase the amount to 300, back
to 300, will there still be an opportunity to consider the other amendments or is that,
past chance.
CHAIR MATEO: That's past chance.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, so this is the moment for us to propose our
amendments then. After my colleagues speak-CHAIR MATEO: Well, yeah, the way the Chair was going to address the amendments that
we receive, we're going, we're going to be taking them one at a time and Mr. White's
was the first that was available because it was, it's in, it's in our binders and we
reviewed it. If Mr. White's amendment fails, we will proceed to the next amendment.
If that amendment fails we will continue on until we address all of the Members'
amendments that they had submitted.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But if his does pass-CHAIR MATEO: Passes, if it passes then it would be in terms of the property tax, the 300,
the rate, once that is set, it's set.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And, and it will necessarily include the restoration of all of
these--
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CHAIR MATEO: Only if, only if the, the amendment recognizes all of the inclusions. If it
does not in, recognize the inclusion, then it will not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm still not sure.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
You know, the last meeting that we had, I proposed 150.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Ms. Baisa proposed 200, and, and, I, you know, that's the
way we did it the last time and, and I'm hearing differently for today's meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, I, I just want to comment on that. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, the, the proposal on the floor is that Mr. White has, has submitted
goes, reverts to the original that we addressed at the last meeting, back to the $300
minimum tax and it included all of the different programs that ended up getting,
getting removed. That is what is on the floor at this point. If that pass, then what is
the, what is the issue for the Members, if that's, if that's passed then 1) we've
recognized the 300 minimum tax; and 2) we are recognizing all of the organizations
who's fundings will be returned.
Yeah, go ahead, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, the, the, the issue for me is that while I would like the
restoration, I do not want to take the minimum tax back to the 300. And once, if his
passes, then the amendments that we're making subsequently, like I want to make,
that will not be, it's not going to happen because we already voted to raise it to 300.
So it would appear to me that my only opportunity would be to amend Mr. White's
motion. Is, if, if that's correct.
CHAIR MATEO: The, the Chair will ask Mr. Clerk for assistance or the Director of Council
Services. Yeah, we're going to call for a short recess at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR MATEO: We'll stand in recess.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 11:12 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 11:51 A.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui regular meeting of June 7, 2011 will
reconvene.
Members, at this time the Chair will call for our lunch recess. This Council will stand
in recess until 1:00. When we come back from lunch, we will continue where we left
off with directions so when you do come back have a good lunch, buckle your
seatbelts and we are going to move. Members the Council stands in recess.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 11:51 A.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 1:02 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui regular meeting for June 7, 2011 will
reconvene.
At this time the Chair recognizes our County Clerk, Mr. Kuwada.
COUNTY CLERK:
Mr. Chairman, just to recap.
Presently we have the main,
Mr. Pontanilla's main motion pending before the body. Mr. Pontanilla's main motion
was amended, a motion to amend Mr. Pontanilla's main motion was made by
Mr. White, and I would reference County Communication No. 11-158, which you have
in your materials.
I believe based upon the discussion just before the recess, that there are Members
who may consider offering a motion to substitute an alternative proposal for
Mr. White's proposal. That is permissible. A motion to amend thereafter of the
substitution would be impermissible under the, under Roberts.
Therefore, if Members, do have, if, if a motion to substitute is made and again this
would be to substitute for Mr. White's proposal. If Members have alternative
substitutions that they want considered by the body, the Members should consider
whether or not they would support the initial motion to substitute because if that
motion passes to substitute, the, if the initial motion to substitute passes, Mr. White's
proposal is rendered a nullity. What is before the body is the substitution that would,
would pass. And it would be, it would, will not be possible to further amend by
substitution.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you and I had waited to, quite a while to, to
just about say the same thing. It, it is in my mind and for the Members to consider
that if we just vote no, vote down this amendment, anyone else wanting to make an
amendment at that point can. And I think the way we should do it is take each
amendment as they come up to look at it on its face value. Now once an amendment
is passed, you can still amend the amendment because you are down to that third
amendment.
But at this point, if we substitute, we're done and then you have to defeat the whole
thing and start over again. And that's my understanding of parliamentary procedures.
The problem we have right now is there are others in this chamber that have
amendments that we are wanting to offer; however, because Mr. White's one came
first, we respect that, he's amending Mr. Pontanilla's amendment, I mean proposal I
should say, and if anybody else substitutes, that kind of ends the chain, and we have
to either defeat in its totality or start, and then start over again.
So my, my, my, my thinking in this and my years of experience in parliamentary
procedures I would prefer that we vote on the amendment here and now, and I
believe by defeating the amendment, we can move on to other amendments.
Now should it pass, I agree, it passes; however, however, and if I'm not mistaken,
even if that passes, we still have an opportunity to amend that one because that
would be the third time out. Okay. So, my feeling is, the cleanest way to do it is take
a vote on the present amendment on the floor and see the results of that because
once we substitute, then we're going to have to really start going into all kinds of
circles. But that's my take on that, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'd like a little bit of a clarification on
that, if that is correct. If that is correct then that, that helps out quite a bit. But if, if
Mr. White amendment, White's amendment passes, we can still do one more
amendment.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Point of order.
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CHAIR MATEO: Mr., Mr. Hokama, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, you are our parliamentarian officer of this body,
not the Clerk, not the Corporation Counsel. I, I think if you make the, make a ruling
and then it is up to the body to either follow through on your ruling or if not, there's
alternatives to our rules on, on what a Member may consider should he not, should
that person not agree with the ruling of the Chair.
But I think you just need to make the ruling Chairman and we can move from there.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Mr. Hokama.
Members, the, the, if that is the consent of the body, then the Chair has no problem
making any kind of a ruling relative to the discussions we're in. Mr. Victorino's
comments with the substitution of the bill, substitution would mean that what is on the
table would be Ms. Baisa's bill, amendment all together, and if the individual
Members have additional amendments, then the only recourse you would, you would
have with that substitution would be to vote against it. If, that way you'd be able to
move your own proposal forward.
The, the process we're in right now, the existing bill made, amendment made by
Mr. White, Ms. Baisa asked for clarification on the process. The process that was
available to her was one, she could do a substitution of the bill and, and secondly she
could also just amend the bill as well. You know the choice is whatever Ms. Baisa
decides.
Please remember what we are addressing. The, the proposed amendments for
example, both involve the minimum, the minimum tax. When one passes, it is
passed. Amendments can be made on items that have not, or was not part of the
original amendment. Okay. Do we understand that part?
Yeah, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This gets more confusing the more I listen but, you know,
before we took our recess, I, my understanding that, was that my option was to
introduce a substitution. Now I'm hearing that there are other options.
CHAIR MATEO: Amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: However, because this is getting so confusing and messy I
kind of agree that maybe the best thing we do is to vote on Mr. White's proposal, and
if it passes, it passes, there's not, not much else we can do with it and if it fails it fails.
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But you know, none of us who want to suggest subsequent amendments want to give
up our opportunity to do that.
CHAIR MATEO: Correct, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So that's why we're asking these clarifying questions.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, and that is why the Chair has allowed the questions to go on
because the Chair understands we have multiple amendments at this time. And if we
address it one by one, as, you know, we're looking at, if the first amendment pass,
then that's done. So we have Mr. White's amendment on the floor.
The Chair recognizes Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I've never been an aficionado of
Las Vegas, but I'll take my chances and let's vote on Mr. White's amendment. I'll
wait.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, the amendment on the floor is amendment
provided to us by Mr. White and if you will refer to County Communication 11-158,
you will see the specifics of Mr. White's proposed amendment. Mr. White it has been
some time and we've been dis, we've been all over the place, is there anything, is
there something brief you can share with us at this point to wrap up the proposal
other than what you've already shared with us.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yes, thank you, Chair.
I'd just like to clarify that when the issue of the first tax bill comes up, if we are able to
pass or receive and pass an amendment changing it by the middle of the year, then
the second tax bill would not go out so their, their tax bill would remain the same as it
is this year.
And, this body has always had a difficult time passing tax measures and part of my
hope by setting this up this way is that it, it generates an incentive for this body to
move ahead with some long overdue corrections to the way, to the fairness of the
our, our tax collection process.
As far as the programs are concerned that, that have lost part of their money or all of
their money in the process of the $2.4 million cut, I think it's important for us to
remember that this County has lots of large bills. And we have in the budget
approximately $12.4 million that we have, we must set aside by law to cover
employee retirement and post-employment health coverage.
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So I, when I look at, at the, at the other amendments, I don't see anything in them
that is focused on economic development. We're, we are taking care of many of the
social services. But as we watch our County expenses grow, I think it's incumbent
upon all of us to take a very hard look and making sure the economic development
initiatives are not left behind because it's those initiatives that will allow us to continue
to grow our economy, to continue to grow our tax base rather than simply taxing
more, the base that we currently have. So those are important things that I believe
we need to keep a focus on as we go through this process.
And I believe that we can, we can fix some of the problems that people in the
testimony have brought up regarding the, the minimum tax. So I would again
encourage passage of this measure and thank you for the opportunity to add a few
more words.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. White. Members, further discussion?
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
And I'm glad to be back to get this moving again. And, you know, I'm, I'm just getting
tired of vacillating back and forth with this minimum tax thing. We all supported, but
I'm speaking for myself, supported the $300. Then we heard testimony, you know, in
opposition, what have you. So Mr. Pontanilla decided let's bring it back to the
150 and I supported him again there. And I will continue to support him there.
He, that list of deleted items that he took out basically is going back in line of what the
Mayor's Budget proposal was to begin with. We, when we had rose the minimum
tax, had the extra 2.4 million in order to subsidize these, these groups which were
extras from the Mayor's proposal and we all agreed at the time, wonderful and they
are great projects. But now that we've reverted back to the original number, it had to
be, we, he basically went back to the original list, basically and deducted it out.
So, I'm sitting here looking at it as being in line with the original Mayor's Budget
proposal at this point. So, again, I will continue to support Chair Pontanilla with his,
with his proposal. Thank you, Chair Mateo.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Member further, Members further discussion?
Okay, thank you, seeing none, Members, all those in favor of the motion to amend
the motion.
Thank you, Members, the Chair's going to take a very short recess, please stay right,
right where you are.
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(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 1:15 P.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 1:17 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui regular meeting of June 7, 2011 will
reconvene.
Members, prior to the break, the Chair was about to call for the question. All those in
favor of the motion to amend as proposed by Mr. White, that is cited on County
Communication 11-58 [sic] to each of the Members, all those in favor, signify by
saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBER WHITE.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, VICE-CHAIR
PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: The Chair heard one "aye", Mr. White; and we have eight "noes". Motion
is defeated.
The Chair will also entertain a motion at this time to file County Communication
No. 11-158.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
SO MOVED.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: Been moved by Mr. Victorino, second by Mr. Couch to file County
Communication 11-158. Any further discussion on that item?
Go ahead, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The question is what about 157, is that going to be, involved
in the same thing.
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CHAIR MATEO: It's 15, yeah, 157 is referenced to another, to another bill.
Okay, all those in favor of the motion to file County Communication No. 11-158,
signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried with nine "ayes".
Okay, Members, any further discussion on the bill.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
MR. CHAIR, I MOVE TO AMEND MR. PONTANILLA'S
MOTION, TO AMEND THE BUDGET BILL AND CIP BILL AS
INDICATED IN RAMSEYER FORMAT ON THE ATTACHED
MARKED-UP COPY OF THE BILLS.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, we have a, a motion on the floor made by Ms. Baisa and
second by Mr. Carroll to amend.
Chair recognizes, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair.
Chair, my amendment amends the proposed Budget Bill and CIP Bill by increasing
the Estimated Revenues for Bond/Lapsed Bond from $24,078,189 to $25,078,189,
resulting in a $1,000,000 increase in the Total Estimated Revenues; and restores
funding for various grants, operating appropriations, and capital improvement
projects which were recommended for approval by the Budget and Finance
Committee but removed by the Council at first reading. The $1,000,000 bond
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increase results from moving the Sakamoto Pool CIP from the General Fund to
Bond/Lapsed Bond.
My amendment also leaves the minimum property tax at $150. My additions include
adding $110,000 to the First Home, First-Time Homebuyers; adding Project
Graduation 50,000; adding 50,000 to the Maui County Farm Bureau; Special
Olympics 50,000; Hospice Maui 250,000; MEDB for Ka Ipu Kukui 25,000; Maui Fest
around 15,000; and $250,000 for the MEO Transit Center. It also moves the Bus
Stop and Shelters Project to the General Fund as this has been the historical funding
source and restores the Sidewalk Study Projects from Upcountry and South Maui at
$100,000 each.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Members, further discussion on Ms. Balsa's
proposal to amend.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I'm going to speak against the amendment and the reason why I am speaking
against the amendment is that here we are adding debt to the County by going
through bond, increasing the bond level, or borrowing of bond. And, you know by
doing that, and, and restoring the, some of the organization that we talked about
much earlier, just doesn't feel right to me. So I, I just going to speak against the
amendment. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I do have some concerns about whether or not
that does affect our bond ratings. Is there, do we have somebody here that can, can
talk to us a little bit about that? Is the Director of Finance here?
CHAIR MATEO: The Director of Finance is in the, the gallery. It, the Chair will ask the
Members, whether or not it, your, your approval whether or not it is okay for us to
bring down the Director of Finance. Are there any objections in doing so?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I object.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I object.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No objections.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, Members we have, we have-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I have objections.
CHAIR MATEO: --we have several individuals who object to the motion. Mr. Couch is there
any specific questions that perhaps Mr., one of, one of the Members could provide a
response to you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, the concern is, is that adding a million dollars to our
current bond, which is still, bond debt which is still pretty low, will affect our bond
rating. Everything that I've read off line says that no, it's fine. So I'm getting
conflicting messages and I would like to know that if, what I'm reading is correct.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, Ms. Baisa, can you provide us additional information.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. I also had made the request to have
Mr. Agsalog present, and the reason I did is, you know it's my opinion that
Mr. Agsalog as the Finance Director of the County of Maui should be intimately
familiar with our financial situation. And if anybody should have late information and
up to date information about what is going on with our bond rating and you know, our
borrowing and what this would, a million dollar increase would do for us, that I would
certainly be interested as a Councilmember in his opinion. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, further.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. You know, kind of object to this
because this is our budget and I'm moving forward on our budget. We, we're not
going to borrow the money right away. When times come for borrowing bond money,
we all see reports on how we bond. We utilize General Funds first and then when
they get sufficient dollars, then we go out for bond. You know we have big projects
that are coming up in the future, near future. There is two that we talk about quite
often, for water services Upcountry.
So I, I don't know what the effects of that will, will do when we go in for bond rating,
so you know, I kind of object to having Mr. Agsalog, you know, come up forward. But
if it's the will of the body, then I'm, you know, it's the will of the body. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr., Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, at this point in the process, you know, I believe it
is the nine of us that's going to need to make this decision. We went through the
com, committee's requirements led by Mr. Pontanilla. I think we, most of us have
enough information. And again Chairman, you know, I've gone through many bond
rating meetings, I've dealt with the agencies, I've dealt with the underwriters, our
bond counsels. I can tell you, the biggest threat to this County was the downgrade to
the State of Hawaii, by their approach to financing. Why do we want to follow and do
what they're doing by borrowing more than we should.
Why we being asked is to borrow to pay for our things to give our cash to nonprofits
to, to, so they can do their things. I get one problem with that, and that's why I'm
thrilled that after we get through with this we're going to deal with grants at the
committee level because I'm thinking maybe we're going to need to put a cap on the
amount that we put out on General Fund. We cannot continue to move in this
direction, Chairman. The Big Island already has a cap of what they provide
nonprofits.
If we want to know what's going to happen to our bond rating, I would say look at our
history of how we've improved our bond rating. The first thing we did was control
borrowing. Okay, and second, you know, for, for, who put the State and the County
in a financial situation. I think former Governor Ariyoshi said it well, every request
that's before us, is nice to have. But I think the second part of his philosophy was is it
necessary, do we need it now? Okay, and I think that's part of the key components
of what is before us.
Every one of us can make a great comment or, or defense of a request before us.
And I would agree, it's nice to have. But as one of the guys who has to put out of his
wallet tax money, I thought this County was about, and I learned from my colleague,
hands up. What we're doing is we're giving hands out, we giving handouts, not
hands up, Chairman.
Even with the First-Time Homeowners financing. That started out as supposed to be
a zero interest loan. Yeah, but we doing to people in my tax category is you making
us who pay, getting closer to the edge of being on the other side of the line now. I,
we cannot keep giving the way we've been giving. And I think we need to look at
ways of recycling and revolving the money, that's why we've called it revolving funds
in the past, Chairman. And I think that's fair.
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But we got to stop this one way dribbling out of cash because it's to me, you're
making it harder for me as a taxpayer to maintain what is, what I've worked hard for,
what I pay taxes on. Don't make taxpayers become into tax receivers. Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, further discussion?
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, for my second time. I, respectfully listen to my
colleagues. Many of them have been around here longer than me; however, I am still
not convinced that a one million dollar increase in what this County owes is going to
put our bond rating in any danger. I tried finding other sources that I thought were
easier and more access, accessible and wouldn't put us in this borrowing mode and
those were all turned down. It's been flatly, we're not going to consider any of the
proposals. So this was a last ditch way to try again.
For me, the things that we're trying to put back into this budget are very, very
important. They are people issues. They are not things and they are not inanimate
objects. These are programs and services and things that are very necessary to the
well-being and our quality of life in this community. And they mean too much to me
to just not try to do something about it and I respect, you know, what my colleagues
have to say.
I just thought that it would be appropriate because Mr. Agsalog cannot make this
decision for us today as it has been stated we are at the point where this is a Council
decision. But you know the, the money, the information we have before us may not
be the latest, may not be up-to-date, and I think that respect for our Finance Director,
who I believe will be the person that will work with Council in securing eventually
bonds, is appropriate and I find nothing inappropriate in having his opinion said
publicly. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
The other thing we can consider with this bond in, as, as Budget Chair Pontanilla,
mentions that we aren't going to borrow it right away is we all have been beating
around the bush of, that yeah, eventually we're going to recognize some more
revenue so that maybe if we put this out to bond right now, put this in for a bond
appropriation and then in six months when we get more revenue than we are
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anticipating and it's solid, that there's no questions, then maybe we can move that
back to cash. I mean that's not an, that's not, that one million dollars will help the
folks that came up there and talked and asked us for help.
I mean it's not like we're, we're just giving out money willy-nilly. This is, these were
very, very important projects that for the most part everybody agrees are good
projects. If we want to spend the million dollars in cash, I'm saying, I can be willing to
as Ms. Baisa says, go to Vegas and say hey look in six months we can get the million
dollars, put it back into cash. So, and then we won't have borrowed it and all these
arguments would be moot.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Victorino, followed by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
And, you know there's, there's a lot to be said about what we are discussing right
now. First of all there's still some more amendments that some of us are going to
propose so there's that still on the table, without messing around with bonds and
other areas, doing other things. But that being, being put aside, I don't think the
million dollars going affect our bond rating in any major way. But I do believe, I do
believe the taxpayers who are watching this want us to do what is right, but they pay
the price, they pay the tab. And that's what so important right now.
Out there on the streets there are many people that are thankful that we are taking a
broad look at everything. They are thankful that we are talking to these organizations
like Mr. Hokama said, we're going to look at grants and, grants and aids after this.
And we're going to look at other things, because you know what, we've let it go too
long. It's our fault, those of us who have been around for a while, I'll take the blame
for that and the new guys, ah, you know, I can't blame them, they weren't here
before. And the past Council didn't want to take a lot of action so they left it to this
Council. So I'm . . . of that fact.
But I don't like, and I agree with this, with Mr. Pontanilla, I don't like to borrow money
and incur debt when I don't have to. There are other alternatives, we know they're on
the table, there other alternatives that we can look at. So I cannot support this not
because I don't want the money, because if you look at my proposal and Mr. Couch
and others I have other proposals, we all want to give them the money. We all
believe these programs are very important. But I do agree we're coming to a point,
how much can we continue to do? We've got to be able to balance.
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We ask efficiency out of our departments, Mr. Chair, then we're going to have to ask
these non-profits to reduce redundancy, you know, to reduce a lot of this duplication
of service. They going to have to start doing these things. They're going to have to
become more self-sufficient and more what is the word I wanted to use, now see,
slipped my mind. Anyhow, become more efficient, I should say, they have to become
more efficient. That's the real world we live in. That's the business motto that's out
there and that's the motto that all of us are going to have to follow through.
Nonprofits, individuals, my own household, we just can't do things as we used to.
We've got to be more conservative and we got to tighten the belt. I mean we've said
that.
So, although I support all these programs and I'd like to see them, and I will, we'll,
we'll find a way to get it done, I know we will by the end of the day. I cannot support
borrowing money to do that for this purpose, for that purpose I cannot. However, we
still need to look at funding these because these are important programs. I believe in
them, I will do what I can to make sure they come to fruition. And if we have more
money like Mr. Couch has said, if we get more TAT and more, if we get that, then
fine, the areas of my concern, my areas are departmental, they can always come in
for budget amendments if they need it. A lot easier than a nonprofit running in and
asking for money at one certain point, a little bit easier.
So consider that ladies and gentlemen, that we need to do this, we are going to do it,
but borrowing is maybe not the way I can support. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
Mr. Victorino said a lot. You know, when I look at the, the list that is before me, you
know, some of the projects, especially the CIP projects, if we going to get more cash
next year, you know, why can't we provide for CIP's. You know, I'm willing to look at
that. But to say that we now we need to add dollars for CIP when the project is not
even ready to go, you know, we stop a lot of County projects that are, aren't ready to
go because, you know, designs not done, permits not gotten yet and, and, we put
aside money only to have money sit.
You know, we talk earlier about, you know this transit center. You know we hear
that, you know, it's a matching only to find out it's not a matching. So with $4 million
on the, on the Governor's table, you know, they, they can easily start.
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For Hospice, you know, they need all of the funding that is required prior to
construction, but what, you know, they, they can come back next year ask for some
moneys that they require for their CIP to get County support.
MED, MEDB for Ka Ipu Kukui, you know, that, that provide training, future leaders of
this County to attend and, and, why can't they pay their own tuition, you know. The
people that I saw standing up, out in the podium, all of them work, you know. Don't
come tell me you, you can't pay for it. And when you put in dollars for snacks, eh,
you know that's a big no-no for me.
You know, I, I can see Project Graduation and, and you know, First-Time
Homebuyers, in fact, even First-Time Homebuyers. I look at my situation, you know I
have two kids that purchase home. And guess what, they really work hard to put in
that down payment, to purchase their own home, and they paying taxes to support
organizations throughout Maui County, even the County itself through infrastructure,
parks, and, and alike. So, sometimes it's hard to swallow and say no, but sometimes
we got to say that. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion? Okay,
Members, just to respond to the initial request from Mr. Couch, we will not be bringing
down the, the Budget, the Finance Director.
Discussion has been ongoing regarding the merits of the proposal submitted and
presented by Ms. Baisa. If there are no additional, no further discussion on Ms.
Baisa's proposal, the Chair is ready to call for the question. All those in favor of the
motion to amend as recommended by Ms. Baisa, and I, I reference the, the
communication dated June 7, Summary of Proposed Amendment as submitted by
Ms. Baisa, with the appropriate attachments, all those in favor of the motion to
amend, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, roll call please.
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COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Gladys Coelho Baisa.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Robert Carroll.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Elle Cochran.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Don Couch.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Riki Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Michael P. Victorino.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Mike White.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Vice-Chair Joseph Pontanilla.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Chair Danny A. Mateo.

CHAIR MATEO:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there are three "ayes" and six "noes".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, AND
COUCH.
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HOKAMA,
COCHRAN,
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS
VICTORINO, WHITE, VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA,
AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, motion is defeated.
Chair recognizes, Chair recognizes, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I'll pass.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, Members, take a look at the submission that was submitted to us
regarding the amendments. Mr. White's amendment at this time is being withdrawn.
Thank you.
Chair recognizes Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, was that County Communication 157?
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. White's communication was-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No it was not, it was not transmitted earlier, it was just brought
on today.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, it was the submission that was presented today to the committee.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Correct.
CHAIR MATEO: It was distributed to the Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No more.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, never.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Withdrawn.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He's withdrawing it anyway.
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CHAIR MATEO: Okay, so that one's withdrawn. So, I can't provide any additional
information for you, so, the Chair is, for that the Chair will recognize Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, so that, in, in that case then do we move to file 157 or is
that.
CHAIR MATEO: 157 is going to come up on also, have issues with Bill 33, so we're going
to still let that one ride.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Got you. Mr. Chair, short recess.
CHAIR MATEO: Couple of minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two minutes.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Council stands in recess.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 1:42 P.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 1:47 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui regular meeting of June 7, 2011 will, will
return to order.
Mr. Couch's proposed
Members, I apologize for the brief recess we took.
amendment is still being worked on at this point, staff will need time to balance it out
and verify the numbers, attach, part of the proposal that Mr. Couch is submitting. It
will, they will need at least half an hour to process it.
So at this, at this time, the Chair will recognize Mr. Victorino, who also has a
proposed amendment that has been provided to each of us.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank, thank you, Mr. Chair.
I MOVE TO AMEND BILL 34, AS INDICATED WITH THE
ATTACHED MARKED-UP PAGES OF THE BILL, AND I THINK
ALL OF YOU HAVE RECEIVED A COPY OF IT.
And basically, Mr. Chair, what I, what I have done is to two things. I have put back,
well first of all I removed.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, yeah, Mr., Mr. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR MATEO: I need a-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR MATEO: I need a-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I apologize.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I didn't hear a second, I didn't even think about it, I
apologize, sorry, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Okay, Mr. Victorino, your, your motion was to amend-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR MATEO: And you got a second by Mr. Couch.
Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. My methodology of finding the, the funds to
put back 785,000 was from two areas. One was from Fire/Rescue Operation was the
removal of one of the trucks, tanker trucks and 75,000 from the Watershed Protection
program. By doing that, I was able to put back Special Olympics for 25,000; Hospice
Maui for 250,000; Project Graduation 30,000; I also put back 30,000 into the Grants
and Aids under the Maui Farm Bureau, taking it from 320 to 350.
As you can see on page 7, I'm sorry, I stand corrected it was 85 from the Watershed
program, I apologize, Mr. Chair, it was 85 not 75, yeah.
And then moving to page 8, putting, restoring the transit funds, the 250,000. Moving
on to page 12, I was able to move the drainage for Kaunakakai Drainage System "B",
I moved cash so that now it's 200,000 in cash, not in bonds.
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Also I put back the "Old Haleakala Sidewalk Study for King Kekaulike to the
intersection of the Old Pukalani Highway and Makawao Avenue for 100,000. And
also in the Makena Community Plan area, for their study on the South Kihei Road
Sidewalk Study from Kamaole III Park to Kilohana, Mauka side of South Kihei Road.
As you can see on that same page, page 13 where I minused out the 200,000 for the
Kaunakakai Drainage System "B", Phase I, yeah.
And that's it, that's basically it. If I, if I missed anything, I apologize, but what I did
was I tried to put back all the important, those who have emailed us, those who have
called us, those who have said these particular nonprofit either projects, CIP, not
CIP, yeah, Capital Improvement Projects, were really important to the nonprofits, to
the community at large.
I did not want and I continue to say until we really look at it, and I think this Council
has the impetus now to move in the area of taxation, whether it's the ag bill, whether
it's exemptions like Mr. White has mentioned. All aspects of our real property tax
code really needs to be looked at and revised. We have a draconian system, a
system that has, has out, outgrew itself and no offense to anybody in the past, when
our forefathers put this together, I don't think we could foresee all the changes that
would occur around us.
I will also have to say that to all the nonprofits out there, to all those who keep coming
to us for money, you going to see a day when this may not be possible, you know. I
understand the importance, I've had family under Hospice care, I've had family that
have been benefactors of Special Olympics. I've been a volunteer, none of us have
not been touched, directly or indirectly of any of these programs.
I was a Project Graduation coordinator and I spent the whole night with the kids and
that was a great time. But I know how important it is to keep them off the streets,
keep them from alcohol and drugs; however, I got to say taxpayers are the ones that
foot these bills. So, we have a fiduciary duty to protect the welfare and safety of the
people of Maui County and that's our charge. We have given the fiscal responsibility
to put this budget together.
We got the budget, and under the leadership of Mr. Pontanilla we have worked
diligently and everyone on this, all nine of us has put our manao on the table, has put
our, our rationale, we've put our hearts there just to do it right. As, as Mr. Couch
said, we need to be pono and that's exactly what we are trying to do.
And my proposal basically is trying to do that, not raising any tax, taking something
that I know for right now is not imperative, needed, in the near future. And again, if
we have more money, it's easy for that department to come in and say I need it, I
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need a budget amendment, boom, they can do it. They've done it in the past, they
can do it in the future.
The key here is we satisfy what I call very important programs so that our seniors,
our needy, those who are on their last days on this earth, can have what I call a
quality of life they richly deserve. You know, I, I compliment all of the Members here,
all the proposals that have been brought up, everyone has, has had its merits. I will
not support tax increases, I will not support borrowing money, if we don't have to.
And with the realization and the anticipation of more funds hopefully next year, based
upon some of the projections, maybe some of these other pro, or things that we're
taking out that I took out like this fire tanker truck, if they need it, they come back, we
can always put it back in.
So Mr. Chair, that's my proposal, it's on the table, I want the nonprofits to know that
we support them. There's never been a question about support, the point is there is
a point of diminishment, there's a point of where do we find the money without
increasing taxes.
There are a lot of people out there that still not working, Mr. Chair. There's a lot of
people that are still with reduced hours. There are a lot of businesses that are not
increasing and they are hurting every time we raise taxes whether on them or their
employees, whomever. Cause when we raise the taxes whether it's the minimum
tax, it hurts others, it has a trickling effect.
There's a lot of seniors out there, their pensions are three, four hundred dollars a
month. And COLA, Social Security has had no COLA in the last two years and I
don't think they're going to have one for the near future.
And with this new Congress and this Republican House, I'm telling you, austere times
are coming real quick. So let us get prepared, let us all be ready for what we need to
do. That's my proposal, thank you very much, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Members, further discussion on the proposal.
Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
You know, one of the things that I, I get hard time with is, you know, I, I know there,
Mr. Victorino has good intentions in trying to provide for some of the services that our
nonprofit community provide to Maui County. One of the things that I kind of frown
on because of what, we had already taken out a tanker for the fire and rescue area
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and, and you know to remove another one I, I think would be probably devastating for
the department in trying to provide a public safety for our people.
And the $85,000 I know we had increased the appropriations for watershed
protection and we talk passionately about how important it is to insure that our
watershed is protected so that the quality of our drinking water is, is not
compromised.
So for me Chairman, and some of the things that are being reinstated is that, you
know, some of these organization can come back next year for their capital
improvement projects. I see no problem in that. So, for me, Chairman, it's, it's going
to be one of those decisions that I'm not going to support because of the areas that
are being removed especially rescue and fire safety, along with the watershed
protection. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Just a question, Chair. The, are we taking, are we going to be
voting on this measure or waiting for the results of the recount on Mr. Couch's motion
or?
CHAIR MATEO: We're going to be voting on this measure. Mr. Couch, Mr. Couch does not
have a proposal on, on the floor at this point and it's just being worked on by staff.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Oh, okay.
CHAIR MATEO: So until that is completed, he will be able to present it-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: --when that's done. Members, further discussion? The Chair will call for
the question, all those in favor of the motion to amend as proposed by Mr. Victorino,
signify by saying "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aye.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, roll call please.
COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Gladys Coelho Baisa.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Robert Carroll.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Elle Cochran.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Don Couch.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Riki Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Michael P. Victorino.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Mike White.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Vice-Chair Joseph Pontanilla.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Chair Danny A. Mateo.

CHAIR MATEO:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there are three "ayes" and six "noes".
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AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS CARROLL, COUCH, AND
VICTORINO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, COCHRAN, HOKAMA,
WHITE, VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR
MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Clerk. Proposed amendment fails.
Members, we will need to take a, a short recess. Staff, 20 minutes?
DIRECTOR OF COUNCIL SERVICES KEN FUKUOKA: We need 30 minutes.
CHAIR MATEO: Thirty minutes. Members, we will need 30 minutes so staff can complete
working on the amendment by Mr. Couch. This Council stands in recess for, we will
return at 2:30. Standing in recess.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 1:59 P.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 2:45 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui regular meeting for June 7, 2011 will
reconvene.
Members, the proposed amendment from Mr. Couch has been circulated at this point
for, for your review. The Chair recognizes Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I move to amend Bill No. 34 (2011) as
follows: in, increasing the minimum real property tax from $150-CHAIR MATEO: Let's get the motion, let's get a motion on the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I was just moving that.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, go ahead, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I, okay, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Now you can go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, my bill amends Bill No. 34, my amendment
amends Bill No. 34 as follows, by increasing the minimum real property tax from $150
to $200, resulting in a 725,000 increase in real property tax revenue; by reducing
General Fund appropriation for the Coach Soichi Sakamoto Pool Improvements
project in Wailuku, Maui and adding a Bond Fund appropriation for the project,
resulting in the availability of $1 million of General Funds in cash; and 3) by adjusting
various expenditures to result in a balanced budget. Amendment, and it also amends
Bill 33 and 31, if this passes.
And I just wanted to mention that this one, after hearing what everybody said, this
one is kind of a, it's definitely a compromise, it's one of those compromises that has a
little bit of bad for everybody and a lot of good for the people that need it.
If we increase the real property tax from 150 to $200 that's a, a $50 increase or $25
every six months. Now, if we do as was mentioned by Councilmember White, if we
get through our procedures, and if we get through our procedures during the budget, I
mean during the regular session and are able to recognize a lot more revenue, then
we can bring the minimum back to 150. And if we can do that before January then
everybody who paid the extra $25 in August will now get a fifty, a $25 less of a bill in
January. So there's, there's give and take there.
The Coach Sakamoto Pool Improvements, again, we move the money into bonds, I
understand we're borrowing it, but again in six months if we recognize what we're
going to recognize and, and I am very confident we are, then we can move that
million dollars right back into cash. This, is one that kind of helps everybody out and
is, is I think a pretty good compromise. So, that's where, do I need to, staff do I need
to read that now?
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, your motion Mr., Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
YEAH, MY MOTION IS TO, TO AMEND BILL 34 BY
INCREASING THE MINIMUM REAL PROPERTY TAX FROM
150 TO 200, AND INCORPORATING THE REVISIONS AS
INDICATED IN THE ATTACHED MARKED-UP PAGES OF
THE BILL.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
SECOND, MR. CHAIR.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, we have a motion on the floor made by Mr. Couch
and second by Mr. Victorino. Further discussion?
Chair recognizes, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I'm sorry I heard Mr. Pontanilla, I believe.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: You can go first if you want to.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, okay, let's go Mr. Pontanilla. You can follow-up later.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
Again, for me I'm going to oppose the amendment to increase the minimum tax from
$150 to 200. And basically, you know, I've been talking about, and gave the reasons
why some of the items, you know, I have problems with.
In, in this case here, I, I know the last one we talk about, you know, going through
General Obligation Bond, and there were questions about our debt service. But it's
not only the bond that we have debt service on, we have debt services on State
Revolving Fund Loans, and now the USDA loan that we're going to pick up for the
South Maui Police Station.
So the debt service continue to climb which I, I think we all should be aware of that
and, you know, we've heard from some testifiers in regards to raising the minimum
tax so I, I will stand by my earlier comments in regards to not raising the minimum
tax. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion?
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ah, yes, thank you very much Chair.
Chair I can support Mr. Couch's amendment. Originally I had tried a similar move
and the reason I had tried a similar move was my realizing that yes, nobody wants to
raise taxes. But a large portion or our homeowners fall into this minimum tax group,
in fact I believe it's something like 16,000 parcels and that's a large, large significant
amount of our property taxpayers.
And, we know that at some point we're going to have to do this unless we find
another source of revenue. So, although it's, you know, the little spoon of medicine
that has to go down so that we can save the appropriations that I think are so
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important for the various programs that have been cut out of the budget, I can
support it. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Members, further discussion?
The Chair will recognize Mr. White, first. Mr. White, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
This amendment has something that I feel is important as we go forward and that is
not only the recognition of, the support for the nonprofits, but it also supports the
economic development initiatives that I feel are so important in order for us to grow
our economy and to grow our tax base so that we can afford the rate of growth that
our County has seen in so many of our expenses.
So, I certainly understand the concern about shifting money from cash to bonds, but
in the, in the balance I feel that we really need to have economic development if
we're going to be able to afford any of this. So, I'll be voting in support of this
measure. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch [sic]. Members, further discussion?
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
And again as I had stated earlier and I will have to continue on that same track that, I
did not and I cannot support any tax increases of any basis for these people. We
know the minimum tax has a profound effect on our seniors, our ranchers, our
farmers.
And if it doesn't get done, you know, you know somebody says ah $25. Well some of
these guys with many, many parcels, $25 may be a lot. It may be the straw that
breaks the camel's back, it may be.
But more important, what about all the others that are out there, our, our veterans
who are struggling along to make ends meet, not disabled veterans, veterans, okay.
Because, some, one of my members mentioned to me that they're exempt, disabled
veterans are exempt, not veterans.
What about our elderly who have not gotten any COLA in Social Security for two
years? What about gas prices? What about the refuse increase? What about water
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rates? Those are already in stone, those are already going to happen. You know a
lot of that stuff is out there.
So, the State already is born, bombarding our, our citizens and now we are going to
do that for the most vulnerable group. I still believe there's other ways of doing this
so I cannot support any tax increase of any nature in this area until we've done our
homework, until we've done all our, our, our, our review of that.
Yes, this makes sure we do it. Now we're going to have to do it. Everyone on this
table basically has committed to do it so I hope Mr. Pontanilla heard that, and so
that's going to be one of the first items that comes up as soon as we get out of
budget to look at that.
And I think next week is one of the first ones that's going to be the home, home
exemption, the qualification for home exemption, yeah. So, we're going to take
immediate action in some areas, which could have some positive effects, revenue
wise. But not on the back of the most neediest at the point in time.
I still believe there's other ways and again we don't have to borrow. I don't want to
borrow, cause just in our own household, either you pay cash or you don't get it all.
That's my wife's mantra, that's the old Portuguese way, no more the money, you
don't buy it. Right Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Unfortunately, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, further discussion?
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
You know, we've had lot of discussions in all kind ways in trying to support the
nonprofit community here today. But I, I would like to say that, you know, everybody
talk about unanticipated addition to the revenues and, if we do have, you know, I
welcome that. And, and I would also welcome from the Administration if they want to
do a budget amendment to satisfy some of the needs of our nonprofit community that
we can take up in, in a committee meeting and we can thoroughly discuss, you know,
a, any amendment in regards to funding. So, I, I'm open to that, again Chairman, you
know, I offer that to the Administration. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you and I, I understand everybody's comments, I
really am doing this with a, an interesting taste in my mouth. I do not like tax
increases, but this is one that, that I think it's a pill that we have to swallow at this
time for the short term. And, this would also get us going, you know, we have those
bills in and the, the work going on by the Administration to do all the revenue
enhancement by just going after making it easier for the, the tax department to go
after the people who are cheating, which will bring in much more money than the
million dollars for the Sakamoto Pool and the $725,000 that this increase at this time
will produce.
By January we can get the million dollars back. By January we can move the
minimum back down to 150 and at the same time, these nonprofits that do rely on us
quite a bit, can budget. Right now, if they are seeing that they can't, they aren't going
to get the funds from us which, you know, some nonprofits should be put on notice
that hey, we are going to look for duplication of services, we are going to look to see
where we can cut there. But the ones that are relying on us at this point, and we say
no we're not going to fund them, they can't budget for July. If we say yes, we're
going to fund them now, they can do their budget for July and continue on with, with
their services.
Other ways, yes there are other ways, but today is the day that we need to make a
decision. We can't do other ways today. We tried, we tried, for quite a number of
hours, and we haven't been able to do it. So, this is a compromise that I think will
work and we can, we can tweak it before January of next year, before the second bill
comes out.
I, I have, I have the utmost confidence in this body that we can come up with a lot
more revenue by just fixing some of the flaws we have in our system. And, and this
is kind of a, an investment in our, and, and kind of showing that I do have confidence
in this body to come up with some really good stuff. So, I, I'm asking for everybody's
support on this, I understand where your positions are but just think about it a little bit
more.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Members, further discussion? All those in favor of
the motion to amend as proposed in document dated June 7, from Mr. Couch to the
Members, all those in favor of the motion to amend, signify by saying "aye".
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, roll call please.
COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Gladys Coelho Baisa.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Robert Carroll.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Elle Cochran.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Don Couch.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Riki Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Michael P. Victorino.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Mike White.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:

AYE.
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COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Excuse me, that should have been
Vice-Chair Joseph Pontanilla.
Chair Danny A. Mateo.

CHAIR MATEO:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, the vote is four "ayes" and five "noes".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COUCH,
AND WHITE.
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
HOKAMA,
VICTORINO, VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND
CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Clerk. Motion fails.
The Chair recognizes Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
AT THIS TIME, CHAIRMAN, I'D LIKE TO AMEND, I MOVE TO
AMEND BILL NO. 34, AND THIS AMENDMENT IS ADDING
THE PHRASE "A GRANT TO" TO THE DESCRIPTION OF
GRANTS TO BE CONSISTENT WITH THE DESCRIPTION OF
OTHER GRANTS AND TO CLARIFY THAT THE PARTICULAR
APPROPRIATIONS ARE GRANTS; AND AMENDS THE BILL
BY CORRECTING THE NAME OF PUBLIC COLLEGE ON
MAUI.
SO I MOVE TO AMEND BILL NO. 34, AS FOLLOWS:
MY, BY AMENDING SECTION 3.B.6(C)(1)(III) ON PAGE 5 OF
THE BILL, RELATING TO THE ENLACE HISPANO
PROGRAM, BY INSERTING THE PHRASE "A GRANT TO"
AFTER THE WORD "FOR" AND BEFORE THE NAME "MAUI
ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC.";
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BY AMENDING SECTION 3.B.6(D)(2) ON PAGE 6 OF THE
BILL, RELATING TO THE MOLOKAI HUMANE SOCIETY, BY
INSERTING THE PHRASE "A GRANT TO" AFTER THE WORD
"FOR" AND BEFORE THE NAME "THE MOLOKAI HUMANE
SOCIETY"; AND
BY AMENDING SECTION 3.B.9(8)(3)(VII) ON PAGE 7,
RELATING TO NURSING AND DENTAL ASSISTANT
PROGRAMS, BY STRIKING THE NAME "MAUI COMMUNITY
COLLEGE" AND REPLACING IT WITH THE NAME
"UNIVERSITY OF HAWAII MAUI COLLEGE".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
SECOND, MR. CHAIR.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, we have a motion on the floor made by Mr. Pontanilla and
second by Mr. Victorino.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
This amendment clarifies the Council's intent for these appropriations to be grants,
establish consistency with the description of other grants in the bill, and corrects the
name of a grantee.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, further discussion on the proposal? Seeing none, all those in
favor of the motion to amend Bill 34 and the Chair references the proposed
amendments that we all have a copy of, proposed, made by Mr. Pontanilla, all those
in favor of the motion to amend as being recommended, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
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CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried with nine "ayes".
Mr. Clerk.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr.
CHAIR MATEO: Excuse me, Mr. Clerk, the Chair will again recognize Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
I MOVE TO AMEND BILL NO. 34 AND THE DESCRIPTION
FOR THE AMENDMENT IS BY DELETING THE NOMINAL
$1 APPROPRIATION AND "OTHER INTERGOVERNMENTAL"
REVENUE RELATED TO THE WAIKAMOI FLUME AND
PIIHOLO WATER TREATMENT PLANT CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS. AMENDS BILL NO. 33 (2011)
TO REFLECT THE CHANGES MADE TO BILL NO. 34 (2011).
BY AMENDING SECTION 2 ON PAGE 1 OF THE BILL,
RELATING TO OTHER INTERGOVERNMENTAL, BY
STRIKING THE NUMBER "$30,727,752" AND INSERTING
THE NUMBER "$30,727,750" IN ITS PLACE; AND RELATING
TO TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES, BY STRIKING THE
NUMBER "$564,729,431" AND INSERTING THE NUMBER
"$564,729,429" IN ITS PLACE; AND
FURTHER, BY AMENDING SECTION 4.I.1(A) ON PAGE 15
OF THE BILL, BY DELETING SUBSECTION (2), RELATING
TO A $1 APPROPRIATION FOR THE PIIHOLO WATER
TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS — ORGANIC CARBON
REDUCTION PROJECT; AND BY DELETING
SUBSECTION (3), RELATING TO A $1 APPROPRIATION FOR
THE WAIKAMOI FLUME IMPROVEMENT PROJECT; AND
FINALLY, BY AMENDING THE END OF SECTION 4, ON
PAGE 16 OF THE BILL, RELATING TO TOTAL CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT APPROPRIATION, BY STRIKING
THE NUMBER "$101,502,430" AND INSERTING THE
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NUMBER "$101,502,428" IN ITS PLACE; AND RELATING TO
TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS (OPERATING AND CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS), BY STRIKING THE NUMBER
"$564,729,431" AND BY INSERTING THE NUMBER
"$564,729,429" IN IT'S PLACE.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
SO MOVE, SECOND, MR. CHAIR, I SHOULD SAY.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, we have a motion on the floor made by
Mr. Pontanilla and second by Mr. Victorino.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
And Members, please bear with me. The reason to this is that Section 9-6(1)(b) of
the Revised Charter of the County of Maui (1983), as amended ("Charter"), states
that the capital program approved by the Council shall contain the "capital
improvement pending or proposed to be undertaken within the ensuing fiscal year,
together with the estimated cost of each improvement and the pending of proposed
method of financing it". According to the Mayor's proposed Fiscal Year 2012 budget,
the estimated costs for the Waikamoi Flume and Piiholo Treatment Plant
improvement projects were 10 million and 5 million, respectively. While the Charter
does not explicitly prevent the Council from making nominal appropriation for capital
improvement projects, it is, it does bring into question whether these nominal
appropriations satisfy the Charter requirements that the "estimated cost of each
improvement" be addressed. (See attached opinion dated May 23, 2011, from the
Department of Corporation Counsel.) Therefore, in order to avoid the possibility that
the Council budget may not fully comply with the Charter, my proposed amendment
deletes both of these projects as well as their nominal $1 appropriation in its entirety,
and makes corresponding adjustments to Bills No. 34 and 33 (2011). Thank you,
Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion on the proposed
amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm going to speak against the motion, which is rare for me
to break support for the Committee Chair, being I'm the Committee Vice-Chair.
However, Chairman, it is interesting to note because I read that opinion from Corp.
Counsel and that's what I take it as, an opinion. And I don't agree with it because at
that point in time of the committee's work that's what we felt the estimate was.
Also, Chairman, if you will recall in committee, the Administration proposed to us,
under a kind of broad title, CIP projects requesting $10 million of bond, but they
couldn't tell us what the project would, so how does that make it into a budget
ordinance proposal document before us.
So let's be consistent. I think part of the problem for myself, not only at the
committee level, but, but at the Council this afternoon, Chairman, is that for us, well
for me in particular, Chairman, it is hard to understand the CIP request when we don't
know what is the goal and intent to be accomplished with, with certain projects.
If somebody told me that the 10 million for Waikamoi is going to reduce the Kula
meter list by 50 percent and that's the objective, and once it gets done this is what
we're going to do. I think there'll be a lot more different mentality and type of support
to provide the financial resource to make it happen. But we don't know that that's the
intent, the objective of certain type of projects that is being proposed to us. In fact, I
just say it, I don't even know what the intention is because it was not communicated
well by the departments.
So this afternoon, Chairman, you know, I still believe that what we have done in
committee is acceptable because at this point in time that's all that, to me, the
estimate is worth for that project, until I can be convinced otherwise. And my opinion
is just as good as any attorney on the third floor when it comes to money. Thank
you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, further discussion-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: --on the proposed amendment.
Mr. Hokama, excuse me, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maybe Corporation Counsel can provide us more
insights? Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Corporation Counsel.
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FIRST DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL EDWARD KUSHI: Yes, Mr. Chair, Member
Pontanilla. I looked at the opinion from Deputy Neely, dated May 23, and we still
stand by that opinion.
I guess the bottom line is we can defend whatever you do either way. If you chose to
wipe it out, fine, then come back and do it again. If you chose to leave the
$1 amount, its booked and I would have to agree with Member Hokama, that's what
he feels its worth, fund it for a dollar. But when a real item, amounts come in, you'd
have to come back. So we could defend you either way.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion? Hearing none, I
like the Corporation Counsel's interpretation.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Keep us floating.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One last comment. Unless I'm mistaken, we have always
put into our budget documents or ordinance drafts, severability clauses that if a
certain portion of the ordinance or the, the budget ordinance does not meet the litmus
test of legal, form and legality, it does not in effect destroy the whole document, only
that one specific area that gets into question gets to be null and voided by a proper
procedural efforts.
So I would say that unless we have changed our processing of the document, that
severability clause should protect the rest of the integrity of work that the committee
has provided for in this proposal. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Mr., Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. My final comment is that, you know, Corporation
Counsel does provide counsel for both the Council as well as the Administration.
And if a challenge should be made, you know, where do we stand? So thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you. So Mr. Pontanilla would you, would you want
Corporation Counsel to respond to that inquiry--

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2011
Page 85

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure, thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Kushi.
FIRST DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL KUSHI: Member Mateo, Mr. Pontanilla. I'm
not sure what your question is.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Because you represent both the Council as well as
Administration, now, when you talk about defending an opinion by Corporation
Counsel, you know, do we have a fair shake in regards to you guys defending both
Administration and Council.
FIRST DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL KUSHI: Member Pontanilla, what I intended
to say was we would defend the Budget from a challenge from a third party.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Which can also be the Administration.
FIRST DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL KUSHI: I guess it could.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
FIRST DEPUTY CORPORATION COUNSEL KUSHI: But.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I just don't want to take the chance.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla
Chair, recognizes Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
You know the, the important thing for me is that these two projects not be forgotten.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Because they're extremely important to not only everybody
Upcountry but everybody in Central Maui as well. And I, and I realize that Chair
Pontanilla's committed to funding the projects when they come back with more
solidified price tags and I know that the majority of the people on this Council are in
support of these projects.
With that thought in mind, the idea of leaving them in, I think has a nice ring to it just
so we don't forget them. So that's, that's my feeling. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr., thank you, Mr. White.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair.
I can echo the sentiments of Member White, I feel the same way. I think it's
important to keep them on the radar screen because these are very important
projects for Upcountry. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Members, further discussion?
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly, and I will say I concur and as the Water
Chair I have continuously looked as these projects, met with the department and they
have assured me that before the end of the year, probably by midyear or I should say
the Fall of this year, Waikamoi probably will be ready to go as far as design and, and,
and construction.
So, you know, I don't want these forgotten, you're, you're right, you know. What
value they have is very important in the, in the scheme of not only the Upcountry
water users as has been mentioned, but in totality all of the users of Maui County.
And, Waikamoi none of us can ever get a real grip until we do the actual repair to
know how much more water we can get out of that system, without tapping into
getting more water. So, I, I can support this, I just don't want it lost in the shuffle
either. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Members, further discussion?
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, one final time. You know, I too don't want to lose sight
of, you know, both projects but you know after receiving Corporation Counsel's
opinion, you know, I along with staff and our own legal people, you know, we, we
thought it was best that we remove this item. And I'm sure we're not going to forget
about this item, you know, like Mr. Victorino has said. But just the technicality of this
whole thing that might jeopardize the 2012 budget. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion? Members, all
those in favor of the motion to amend as being recommended by Mr. Pontanilla,
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based on the communication provided to us dated June 7, 2011, all those in favor of
the motion to amend signify by saying "aye".
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, roll call please.
COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Gladys Coelho Baisa.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Robert Carroll.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Elle Cochran.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Don Couch.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Riki Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Michael P. Victorino.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Mike White.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:

NO.
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COUNTY CLERK:

Vice-Chair Joseph Pontanilla.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Chair Danny A. Mateo.

CHAIR MATEO:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there are three "ayes" and six "noes".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBER
COCHRAN,
PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.

VICE-CHAIR

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COUCH,
HOKAMA, VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Motion fails.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair short-CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: May we have a short recess, please.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Two minutes, five minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two is fine.
CHAIR MATEO: Two minutes, Members, we will stand in recess.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 3:17 P.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 3:26 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui regular meeting of June 7, 2011 will
reconvene.
Mr. Clerk, can you please tell me where we are.
COUNTY CLERK:
Mr., Mr. Chairman, Mr. Chairman, we have just disposed of
Mr. Pontanilla's motion to amend Bill 34. This was in Mr. Pontanilla's amendment
memo distributed at today's meeting.
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CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, thank you very much. Thank you very much.
Chair recognizes Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
Mr. Chairman, I have another amendment to make.
I MOVE TO AMEND SECTION 3.B.6(C)(1) ON PAGE 5 OF
THE BILL, BY INSERTING AFTER ITEM (III) THE
FOLLOWING: "(IV) PROVIDED, THAT $25,000 SHALL BE
FOR A GRANT TO SPECIAL OLYMPICS HAWAII, INC."
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Yeah, we have a motion on the floor made by Mr. Pontanilla
and second by Mr. Couch.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
And, and the reason is that this amendment would provide $25,000 for Special
Olympics Hawaii, Inc., which provides year-round sports training in athletic
competition in a variety of Olympic style, type sports for children and adults with
intellectual disabilities in Maui County.
During the Budget and Finance Committee's discussion on Fiscal Year 2012 Budget,
the Committee was initially advised that this organization did not qualify for a
Community Partnership Grant because of inadequate financing reporting.
Representatives from Special Olympics Hawaii, Inc. have refuted this assertion.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion on the proposed
amendment.
The, the Chair will be supporting this proposal. The Chair is the individual that has
actually made the proposal and the reason that I chose to offer the amendment is
because the, as Mr. Pontanilla had indicated, during Committee meeting, we had
heard from the Department that indicated the reason for this particular organization
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not getting funded and the Department made it clear that it was due to them not
adequately providing their required reports.
However, we have heard other information that tells us that part of the reasons that
they were omitted from funding was because the priorities of the Department
included housing, included food, housing and safety of which this particular
organization was not a part of because they are more geared towards athletics and
providing additional services for the special group of individuals.
It is my own feeling that the Department did not have that discussion with this
particular organization and they were inadvertently left out of funding so I had
decided to propose an amendment so that this particular organization can get their
$25,000 to provide the services to the clients that they currently serve.
And, having said that, the Chair opens the floor to additional comments by the
Members.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. What I failed to mention is that the appropriation
will be from the Human Concerns Program. And Chairman, I, I know this is a last
minute item that you wanted me to bring forward and I brought it forward on your
behalf. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion? Before the
Chair calls for the vote, give me a minute. Thank you, Members, we're going to take
a very short recess.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 3:31 P.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 3:34 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui, June 7, 2011 meeting will reconvene.
Members, I'm going to ask the maker of the motion at this time to withdraw the
motion regarding the amendment we were just discussing. We will have an
additional amendment that will be up for reconsideration and this particular item
regarding the Special Olympics is an item that, that exists in the proposed
amendment. So at this particular point in time, we will address the request for
reconsideration and if Mr. Pontanilla and Mr. Couch would withdraw, excuse me,
would withdraw your, Mr. Couch, withdraw your motion and second.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Chairman, I withdraw my motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I withdraw my second.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Then we will move on to the request for
reconsideration. The Chair recognizes, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair.
CHAIR, I MOVE FOR RECONSIDERATION OF THE
AMENDMENT THAT WAS SUBMITTED BY
COUNCILMEMBER MIKE VICTORINO.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, we have a motion on the floor made by Ms. Baisa, second by
Mr. Carroll.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair, as I was on the prevailing side of this, disposal of
this amendment, I think that now that we have completed a review of all of the
amendments that were put before us, that I think I would like the Members to have a
second opportunity to look at Mr. Victorino's proposal and possibly reconsider it.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Members further discussion on the request to reconsider.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair, and, and again, as I stated earlier and
I will just have to repeat myself as, cause there is no other way of putting it. This to
me is probably the best way to accomplish what we need to accomplish, taking care
of what I consider very important nonprofit request and needs including Special
Olympics.
Putting an opportunity for the Fire/Rescue and not to inhibit or prevent fire, fire
protection and safety of the, the general public. But if we realize next fiscal year
additional resources, additional money, they can come in very easily and ask for a
budget amendment if this is so well, so much needed at that point in time. It's not
very difficult.
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And the watershed protection program, we added almost $500,000 more, 460 or 80, I
forget exactly the amount. So, that was another area where I felt just a little out of
that to help this group would suffice the needs. And this is what I try to do, get the
most neediest of needs, the ones that really were, you know, at our door, wanting
and needing these things, so that we can get this done.
So this is the compromise that I felt was fairest to all. I would hope everyone would
reconsider that. I know what everybody's position has been in the past, I just want
them to say, you know, what, this is the one way we can do it and get it done and
with the good lord's will, finish this up so that we can get this budget completed in its
second and final reading.
But I want to thank everybody and thank Ms. Baisa for the reconsideration. I, I
appreciate that and I hope that the other Members would take very kindly to this and
help these groups and know that the, where we taking it from does not raise taxes,
does not borrow money, does not hurt anyone. And if it's needed, we can always
find it as a budget amendment. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr., Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I will not be supporting the reconsideration. In,
especially when you take away a 500 GPM Tanker from the Fire Department and the
area that this piece of equipment will be taken, is from the Kahului Fire Station, the
area that I represent. The area that has the most dry brush.
So by doing that, when we look at our core services, we need to provide fire safety
throughout Maui County and I can assure you that this 500 GPM Tanker will not only
provide fire equipment for Central Maui, but they go as far as Upcountry. So by
jeopardizing part of our core services in trying to protect property and people, taking
away a vehicle from our Fire Department is very, very serious to me.
And, when you look at the reason why they want to replace this vehicle, you looking
at eventually breaking down due to frequent and under extreme conditions. So, this
vehicle that need to be replaced is probably on the verge of breaking down. And,
and let us all remember we pass a budget this year, it takes year and a half two years
just to get this tanker. So if we continue to remove equipment from the Fire
Department, we actually, you know, put our community in jeopardy, especially when
it comes to firefighting.
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One of our objectives here in Maui County when we receive revenues through real
property tax is core services. And the highest of core services is public safety. So,
Members, I, I hope when you think about the reconsideration, you look at, you know,
what it will do to the Fire Department and the ability to fight fire for our community,
not only for Central Maui but other parts of Maui County.
So, I, I don't want to put the people in jeopardy, I don't want to put property in
jeopardy, so by taking away the tanker, I think we're doing a real, well to me it's a bad
decision. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion on the proposal.
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you.
I thank the lady from Upcountry for, for the consideration but I will not be supporting
it, Chairman, this afternoon. You know, I gave up a lot for Lanai, from the Lanai
district with this budget. So if you'll look Lanai has no CIP this coming year. But I felt
that we made progress for the island as a community, as part of this County by
placing money, moneys into funds that I thought was very important, not only to
Lanai, but from what I've heard for Molokai and Maui island too. The three things
was, jobs, water, taxation. And I say that because I still in my heart believe us to be
a conservative County in general by the way we are made up of our peoples and of
the three sister islands.
For me, Chairman, taking away from the Watershed Protection Fund takes away not
just part of a district or an aquifer of this island, but for Lanai, it's the whole island.
Good or bad we have one aquifer and, and I had great hopes that Lanai's share from
the Watershed Protection Fund would be part of a total economic development effort
for our island.
It was also going to be part of a coordinated effort for us to get our 73 acres that we
going to see the Land Use Commission tomorrow morning for final approval to get
our affordable housing project moving forward, Chairman. You know, so for me it
was, it was part of a plan to be able to give up one Fire Department CIP for Lanai in
the hopes of future gains that we could get not only for Lanai as an island, but for this
County.
And for me, I believe, Mr. Pontanilla is correct. The Charter makes us fund core
requirements first, and two of the departments that are stated by the Charter are
Water Department and Fire and Public Safety. For me I would give those dollars to

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2011
Page 94

those departments that are mandated by the Charter first priority and my first vote.
Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, further discussion?
Ms. Baisa, followed by Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair.
Chair this is difficult and this was not easily done. I tried every possible way I could.
I tried self-insurance, emergency fund, TAT, million dollars' worth of bonding, and
last, lastly now, trying to help Mr. Victorino get his suggestion through as a last resort.
I do not relish the idea of making the Fire Department wait for a tanker. I don't relish
the idea of giving up any money for watershed. But I do not, I relish less the idea of
the items, the important items that have been deleted from the budget.
So this is kind of a desperate attempt to get those funded. I think what it does for us
is yes, I understand very, very much the responsibilities that we have as, as County
people and for public safety and the things that we have to do. But I really feel, I
think everybody knows who I am, I'm the lady with the bleeding heart and so be it,
that's who I am. I never tried to be anything else. Everybody knows that I care very
much about people and people programs and "To thine own self be true".
I would like to see this as a compromise and what it does for me is it really puts the
ball in our court. And the ball in our court is that we deal with the reforms that we
have to do in order to bring in the funds so that we can take care of the needs of this
County. And we as a Council have to move very quickly to do what we have to do so
that we can get just taxes into our coffers so that we can pay our bills.
And the impetus now is on us to act quickly and there is nothing to stop the
Administration from coming back with a request for this once money is identified.
And we can always take care of it so, again like I said, this is not something I relished
in supporting, but I see it as, you know, either we're going to support Mr. Victorino's
amendment and be able to put some of this money back into where we feel it's
important and we all decided it was important because we all agreed to these things.
This is not something that was pulled out of the air. We sat here, talked about them
and agreed that these were important items.
Or we take the, the bill as Mr., as our Chair has suggested and this is no disparaging
of our Chair, he's doing his job, these are his beliefs, his ideals and he's entitled to
them just as much as everyone else is. But, those are our choices and so I wanted
to try one more time. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
Mr. Carroll.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman, for allowing me another
time.
I, I just want to remind the Members that we already took out one tanker away from
the Fire Department, from the Kihei Fire Station, which is part of Central. So do, to
do the second one would be devastating for the Fire Department to fight fires not only
in Central Maui but other areas throughout Maui County. So we put our County in
jeopardy in regards to fire safety, protecting people's lives as well as protecting
property.
Earlier I had said that this Chair is willing to listen to any budget amendment because
we, some of the, even some of the Members are talking about having more revenues
according to their information. This Chair is open to budget amendments. In fact,
Mr. Victorino said he's open to budget amendments for the tanker. So I'm open to
budget amendments to provide funding to, to these nonprofits that are coming to
Council asking for us to support their organization.
But again, let me remind all of the Members here, when I look at Capital, Capital
Improvement Projects, I know some of the projects are not ready to go, not ready to
go. When I look at one transportation center in Kahului, once the Governor signs,
they get $4 million. They can start their work with $4 million.
Hospice, Hospice is probably two, three years away from really constructing their
12 bed facility. They want to come in for a budget amendment through the Mayor,
I'm willing to listen, I'm, I'm sure all of us are willing to listen. But again, to put public
safety in jeopardy, and Mr. Hokama had mentioned about the Charter, water, public
safety. Do we jeopardize public safety? I don't think so. As a responsible citizen of
this County, I look at protecting people, I look at protecting property.
So, Chairman, you know, I stand by my not supporting the request to reconsider
because I, I think public safety is too darn important. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further.
Ms., Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
And, you know, I echo Mr. Hokama, and Mr. Pontanilla. Anything having to do with
public safety is number one and of course the Watershed Protection also is so, so
highly important. I went through the Lanai Water Use and Development Protection
Plan yesterday, 758 pages. Let me tell you that is a really scary prospect over there
if we don't pay attention with that watershed. They have only one aquifer like
Mr. Hokama said and it's in dire need of attention. And to take away a penny from
this type of work for me is, is, I, I can't stand by.
So, unfortunately, you know, I commend everybody for really trying to push through
all these different amendments we've been going through today, but this one in
particular, I mean it was a six "no" to three "aye" vote here, it wasn't like a close call
like Mr. Couch's four to five.
So, I mean I commend everybody for keep trying and persevering here, but I just,
sorry cannot support this one. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Vic, excuse me, Mr. Carroll, followed by Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
This does not seem to be the regular meeting that we have every month, every time I
hear you say that-CHAIR MATEO: Far from it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Far from it.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: It's very difficult and if this motion passes, I will be the first
to support a budget amendment for the Fire Department to restore the funding that is
lost today. And I think we should always as Mr. Pontanilla has said, we do have the
options. But, the, what we're restoring, those people need to have the security now.
In a very short time we can do a budget amendment for the Fire Department which
will not adversely affect them. But trying to do budget amendment later on some of
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these other items would be very difficult because they need the continuous funding.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank, thank you, Mr. Carroll.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
And you are correct Ms. Cochran, this is not a regular meeting, I mean Mr. Carroll.
Too many "C's" in this place, you know what I mean. Lucky I'm the only "V" around
and I don't know if that means much.
You know, every one of you are absolutely correct. And Mr. Pontanilla I would never,
never jeopardize safety of the people of Maui County unless I really looked at
everything. The one tanker we took out is because the tanker they had down there
didn't fit in the garage, which, and was only six years old which wasn't a very good
reason. This one, I looked at the tankers and the equipment they have, yes we need
to get new ones, yes we need to continue to upgrade, but it's not a life and death
situation.
That being said, watershed, we put in additional income, additional moneys I should
say just because the Feds and the State now are not doing their share anymore.
They've pulled back, they don't have money, so they not helping us in any way. So
we're responsible for taking care of our aina. Fine, that's not a problem. And we
stepped to the plate. Mr. White and all of us stepped to the plate. So we need to
step to the plate right now for something that's very urgent.
Now these moneys for these transit center, the CIP moneys, is just to give them that
opportunity so that they know that funding is available, that's all, pau, bottom line. All
the other ones we all agree are good, needed services to this County. Special
Olympics, Project Graduation, all of these are all things that none of us will dispute, is
good for the people of Maui County, good for the people of Maui County.
And no matter which way I turn, no matter which way we've tried, like Ms. Baisa said,
this is the last desperate attempt. I hate to think I'm the last desperate attempt in this
world. But that's the way life is.
We are going to vote on this. Whichever the vote, whichever the way the vote goes,
I'm confident that two things, Mr. Chair, the people of Maui County who have
watched this process cannot and will not say at least we don't consider every option
available to us. Whether you agreed or not, whether you liked it or not, we put more
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options, I believe on the table, this one budget session and today in particular than I
can ever recall, ever in a budget session, just today alone.
And we had versions of this, that, and everything else. And in fact one of our
Councilmembers waited till every other version went, then had his put together and
still failed. I don't know what to say except ladies and gentlemen, we are at a point
where we need, need to make a decision. Yeah, or nay, it's your call and whatever
way you vote, whether you support it or don't support it, the people of Maui County
can at least say we have worked hard to come up with a viable, balanced, just, and
as fair as possible budget all around. Not just this part, but all around.
We kept taxes down. We cut what the Mayor had sent down, what we didn't feel the
Administration needed whether it was cars, positions, da, da, da, da, we did, we cut.
And I thank Mr. Pontanilla for his leadership. I thank Mr. Hokama for his advice. I
thank everyone in this room for your manao. Mr. Chair, you have been in this
process for many years not only as a Councilmember, but as an aid prior to that, so
you've seen all the good and bad.
These are austere times. These are times that have been tough, and the tough
decisions have to be made. Here's a chance to make the decision and it's a tough
one. Whichever way you vote, I can say, vote your heart, vote what you think is right,
and let the future and god be your, your determination on what happens. The people
of Maui County, we've done our best, I hope you understand no matter which way we
go, we've done it for you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman, one last time.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know I was given a newspaper article, an
article that quote former Governor Ariyoshi. One of the things that he said is that,
you know, government ought to ask, is it nice to have, but is it necessary. When you
talk about firefighting equipment, is it necessary, darn right it's necessary.
One of my colleagues talk about budget amendments for a fire truck. You know, it
takes 18 months to two years just to get one truck. So if you go through a budget
amendment, it might take two and a half, three years. I consider budget amendment
on a request by our community, through Administration after we find out that we, you
know, somehow get additional revenues. It's a much easier process, much easier
process. So no come tell me a budget amendment for a truck is, is easy. If you need
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the truck, cause the one in Kahului eventually going break down and do we wait two
years, maybe three, I don't think so.
People out there, the people that's listening to this meeting, you know, they want to
see that they're protected. I want to see that they are protected. You know, we, we
making some tough decisions over here. We all talk about what is needed for our
community. Which is the most important, protecting people's lives and properties or
providing funding to fund a capital improvement project that might not happen two,
three years down the line. You know, anybody can, you know, we all can see which
is more important.
So the decisions that we make today, hopefully, you know, we can all live with it no
matter which way we go. But for me, Chairman, to jeopardize the people of this
County, you know, is more important then, to me as a Councilmember.
You talk about watershed protection, you never hear me talk about watershed
protection. You know, we put in a lot of money in watershed protection. We know
that there's feral animals in our watersheds and we need to take care of. We know
we have invasive species that we need to take care of. So do we jeopardize our
drinking water, I don't think so. That's the reason why we have a Charter
amendment, water, public safety. So if we go against the Charter, Charter,
Chairman, something is wrong, something is definitely wrong.
You and I know I'm a big advocate for nonprofits. From the start, I'm also a big
advocate to protect this County, yes to protect this County. So Chairman for me, you
know, this has been an long arduous process but I stand on my convictions in
regards to the budget that we had proposed is a darn good one. We all work hard.
And when we start playing the balancing act, looking at people one side, looking at
services on the other side, it's not easy, it's not easy. But we have a Charter that
guides us and we should utilize that Charter because it tells us what is important to
this County. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion? Hearing none,
Members, we're dealing with the request for reconsideration of the proposed
amendment that have, was submitted by Mr. Victorino. Chair will call for the question
and the Chair will ask the Clerk to do a roll call. All those in favor of motion,
Mr. Clerk.
COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Gladys Coelho Baisa.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:

AYE.
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COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Robert Carroll.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Elle Cochran.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Don Couch.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Riki Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Michael P. Victorino.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Mike White.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember, excuse me, Vice-Chair
Joseph Pontanilla.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Chair Danny A. Mateo.

CHAIR MATEO:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there are five "ayes" and four "noes".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COUCH,
VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
HOKAMA,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2011
Page 101

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Motion carries.
The Chair does not have any more amendments that I am aware of-COUNTY CLERK: Excuse, excuse me, Mr. Chairman, the motion to reconsider brings, the
passage of the motion to reconsider brings before the body Mr. Victorino's proposed
amendment and it requires the action of the Council.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much Members, for that, that short break. We are now
returning to the proposal that was submitted by Mr. Victorino. Because of the
reconsideration, there are no, no changes or amendments further that can be done to
this particular proposal. Chair will call for the question, all those in favor of the motion
signify by saying "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aye.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no".
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, roll call.
COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Gladys Coelho Baisa.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Robert Carroll.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Elle Cochran.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:

NO.
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COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Don Couch.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Riki Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Michael P. Victorino.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Councilmember Mike White.

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE:

AYE.

COUNTY CLERK:

Vice-Chair Joseph Pontanilla.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK:

Chair Danny A. Mateo.

CHAIR MATEO:

NO.

COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, there are five "ayes" and four "noes".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COUCH,
VICTORINO, AND WHITE.
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS
COCHRAN,
HOKAMA,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, motion, motion is carried.
Okay, Members, okay, Members, if there are no more amendments for Bill 34, the
Chair was going to go back to the main motion. And the main motion is to pass Bill
No. 34 (2011) as amended on second and final reading. Discussion, Members? All
those in favor of the motion signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
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CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Motion is carried with nine "ayes".
And Members, for Bill 34, I have a request from staff, they need an additional couple
of minutes to rebalance and take a look at the bill, especially with the amendments
that had occurred during this process. We're going to take a short recess for staff,
ten minutes, five minutes. We're going to be on recess for five minutes.
(THE MEETING WAS RECESSED BY THE CHAIR AT 4:05 P.M., AND WAS
RECONVENED AT 4:16 P.M., WITH ALL MEMBERS PRESENT.)
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui, regular meeting of June 7, 2011 will
reconvene.
Mr. Clerk.
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
33 (2011)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO THE
CAPITAL PROGRAM FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
ENDING JUNE 30, 2012
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I MOVE TO PASS BILL NO. 33 ON SECOND AND FINAL
READING.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, second by Mr. Hokama to pass on
second and final reading Bill No. 33 (2011).
Mr. Pontanilla.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I, I just want to read some remarks if I may.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Before we do all these amendments again,
and then, and then I lose track.
Chairman, you know, with the deliberations on the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget coming
to a close, as the Chair of your Budget and Finance Committee, I would like to thank
the Councilmembers, Administration and members of the public for their valuable
time and input throughout this process.
Austere times continue. Amidst concerns over the human and financial cost of recent
natural disasters around us, unemployment woes, mortgage crises, and ongoing
wars, we in Maui County have grappled with the many competing priorities that factor
in to providing stability for our people here at home. What does this stability consist
of? Faced with decision of whether to house and feed herself and her son, one
mother chose to feed her son, at the cost of withholding food from herself and sought
rental assistance from a County funded program. What does our stability consist of?
The bottom line, for me, is this: we must continue to feed our County's sons and
daughters who are in need.
What does a, that mean for the County's budget? Our focus must be, remain on
food, shelter, core services, safety and health. Cut proposed spending where it
makes sense. Reject an increase in real property tax rates to the levels proposed by
the Mayor. Refuse to take on more debt than in, is prudent. Concentrate on delivery
of basic needs and, in the area of basic needs, deny no one.
First, following weeks of meetings, where departments were scrutinized again,
departments were scrutinized and hundreds of testifiers shared their thoughts, the
Budget and Finance Committee made reduced, reducing the count, cost of County
government a priority, reducing the cost of County government a priority. We pared
the Mayor's proposed budget back through carefully considered, systematic
reductions. With no sacrifice to core services, we reduced the Mayor's budget for
Fiscal Year 2012 by over ten percent. This go around, highlight, highlights of those
reductions include the following:
The Mayor's proposed real property tax rates, expressed as rates per
one thousand of net taxable valuation, were reduced as follows: Time
Share, from 19.60 to $15.00; Apartment, from 5.75 to 5.50;
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Commercial, from 6.45 to 6.25; Industrial, from 7.25 to $7.00; and
Hotel/Resort, from 9.35 to $9.00
Budget premium pay for County employees were decreased by
roughly 20 percent across the departments.
Eighteen proposed expansion positions were eliminated, saving
approximately $783,000.
Non-specialized vehicles such as sedans, vans, sports utility vehicles
were not funded pending the completion of the Mayor's vehicle
inventory audit. A resulting reduction of 15 vehicles saved
approximately, saved approximately $580,000.
The curbside recycling pilot project was not funded, pending reevaluation to ensure the project is ready to move forward.
We declined to recommend the level of debt proposed by the Mayor
through the issuance of general obligation bonds, limiting capital
improvement projects to those projects that the Administration had
sufficiently defined.
We prioritized appropriations for the following capital improvement projects to
address health and safety concerns:
Seventeen million dollars were appropriated for the Kihei Station.
Twenty million dollars remain of the Fiscal Year 2011 appropriations,
which funds are available until December 31, 2011.
As a vital communication link between first responders, responders of
the County, the Public Safety Radio System Replacement was fully
funded, but with more appropriation financing alternatives than
proposed by the Mayor.
Over $5 million in Countywide road resurfacing funds were
appropriated.
Perhaps most importantly, no human services dollars proposed by the Mayor for the
purpose of continuing or expanding existing services were cut. And because it's so
important, let me reiterate that each such human service dollars proposed in the
Mayor's budget, including funding for affordable rental housing, Maui Food Bank,
congregate meals and the home-delivered meals, HeadStart programs, homeless
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programs, substance abuse programs and youth centers and programs remains in
the Council's budget.
This budget session we saw, directly, the repercussion of a desire to provide more
than we could rightly afford for causes we felt passionate about. In an effort to
increase the funding for certain nonprofit organizations, programs, and capital
improvement projects, were resolved to pass a modest increase to the minimum real
property tax. In response, the Council heard from ranchers, veterans, and others that
the minimum real property tax increase would create a hardship for them, for, or
produce other unintended consequences. We responded logically, by acting to
protect the well-being of our County taxpayers, our County taxpayers.
The County's fiscal state always faces challenges. We continue to grovel, beg and
plead with the State to continue receiving the County's portions of the hotel room tax.
The County's exposure to lawsuits is always present. Additionally, we cannot ignore
existing obligation to our retired County employees.
Elected officials are often presented with choices that could produce unintended
consequences. As those tasked with leading this County, we need to keep the big
picture in mind. Again, I'd like to reiterate we need to keep the big picture in mind.
While quick fixes may resolve immediate problem and gain short-term support from
the public, what good are they if they negatively impact the overall health of the
County in the long run?
Doing what's responsible isn't always popular, but where taxpayer's dollars are
concerned, it is the right thing to do. I vote, as I have these past eight years, for fiscal
responsibility.
And, Chairman, what we just completed was a daunting task, you know. We here,
you know the sacrifices that we the County must endure and part of that is the result
of what happened earlier. So we sacrifice a lot of stuff from the County.
So again, Members, I thank you for your support and Chairman, thank you for giving
me this opportunity before you take the vote on item, or Bill No. 33. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
Chair, recognizes Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
MR. CHAIR, I MOVE TO AMEND BILL 33 (2011) BY
INCORPORATING THE REVISED, REVISIONS INDICATED
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ON THE ATTACHED MARKED-UP PAGES OF THE BILL FOR
CONSISTENCY WITH THE AMENDMENTS TO
BILL 34 (2011).
CHAIR MATEO: Okay, Members, for reference, for reference, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
I SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, for our reference, reference point, what we're
looking at is this, the same proposed amendment that was submitted by Mr. Victorino
that we had just taken action on a few minutes ago. Okay, thank you very much.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
Mr. Pontanilla pretty much said everything. This was a true daunting task and I, I,
and even this amendments, I did not take this very lightly. I want the public to know
that I looked at everything.
You know, this tanker truck in, in Central Maui, you know, is nine, nine years old, has
like 46,000 - 47,000 miles. It's still in very good shape. Yes, we need to start looking
at changing but at this time, these other needs seem more pressing. And without
raising taxes, without raising more fees, without hurting those who are most
vulnerable, and helping those who really need, this was the, this was the, this was my
charge and this is what I came up with.
Whether it was the last minute, whether it was the last, last chance, or the end of the
line, I, I don't care what you want to put on it. I think under Mr. Pontanilla's leadership
and every one of the other eight Members including yourself, Mr. Chair, we all put our
heart and soul in putting a viable, fair, and as equitable a budget as possible.
With all the other challenges facing us, we were austere. We looked at ways of
cutting the budget, where we could, and something we've done for two
Administration's now I've had the opportunity to work with, so it's not just this
Administration, it was the other one. And I remember the former Mayor getting angry
and saying how dare you cut my budget. But that's our charge, that's our
responsibility, that's our fiduciary duty. That's why the people elect us to be here, to
do the right thing.
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Now, not everybody will believe that, not everybody would agree with it. But in my
heart of hearts, along I think with everybody else, and I can say I speak for everybody
else, but I think everyone of us feel in our heart, we've done the best we could.
With the uncertainty, the gray skies that are ahead of us, we don't know. If we get
more money, I, god, we, we, we can do more. But if we don't, we're not stuck trying
to scramble to find and let me remind everybody, we're not the Federal government
that we have printing machines that can go chicack, chicack, chicack and here's
another hundred dollar bill, here's another hundred dollar bill. We don't have that
opportunity. Our copiers may come close, Mr. Chair, but I don't think that's legal.
So with all that said and done, Mr. Chair, I want to thank Mr. Pontanilla; I want to
thank Vice-Chair Hokama; you, Mr. Chair; not only for helping us with this budget, but
running to Honolulu time in and time out, the three of you, to make sure that Maui
and the neighbor islands was not forgotten. And I got a lot of good comments back
from those, those who you met with, leadership and our people.
I thank you guys for you guys help and I assure the people of Maui County, this is not
the end. This is just the beginning, the beginning of changes that really are and will
be done. I commit to that, and I think I've heard that from other Members, we believe
we now know where we need to go, let's go. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Members, further discussion, regarding the
amendment. Hearing none, all those in favor of the motion to amend Bill 33 as being
ref, as being proposed by Mr. Victorino, signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, VICTORINO, WHITE, VICE-CHAIR
PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA.
CHAIR MATEO: Let the record show we have eight "ayes", one "no" Mr. Hokama.
Members, further, the Chair would entertain a motion to file County Communication
No. 11-157.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
SO MOVE.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, point of order.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, Mr. Hokama, Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I believe we still have a main motion on, original main
motion on the floor, Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Terrific, thank you very much, thank you very much. Members, we're
going back to the main motion, and the main motion is to pass Bill No. 33 (2011), as
amended on second and final reading. All those in favor of the motion, signify by
saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, VICTORINO, WHITE, VICE-CHAIR
PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried with eight "ayes", one "no" Mr. Hokama.
Thank you. And again the Chair asks for that motion to file County Communication
11-17 [sic/
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
SO MOVE.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
CHAIR MATEO: We have a motion by Mr. Pontanilla, second by Mr. Couch, second by
Mr. Hokama. Thank you very much. Any discussion? Hearing none, all those in
favor of the motion to file County Communication No. 11-157, signify by saying "aye".
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AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried nine "ayes". Thank you, Members.
Mr. Clerk.
ORDINANCE NO.
31 (2011)
BILL NO.
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF
EIGHTEEN MILLION FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY-FIVE THOUSAND FOUR
HUNDRED NINETY-SEVEN DOLLARS ($18,555,497) AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI FOR
THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING FUNDS TO PAY ALL OR A PART OF THE
COST OF APPROPRIATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS OF AND FOR THE
COUNTY OF MAUI; FIXING THE FORM, DENOMINATIONS AND CERTAIN
OTHER FEATURES OF SUCH BONDS AND PROVIDING FOR THEIR SALE;
AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE TO DETERMINE CERTAIN
DETAILS OF THE BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND
SALE OF A LIKE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
ANTICIPATION NOTES IN ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE AND
SALE OF SUCH BONDS; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER ACTIONS RELATED
TO THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY OF SAID BONDS
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I MOVE TO PASS BILLS, BILL NO. 31 ON SECOND AND
FINAL READING.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
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CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, and second by Mr. Hokama that Bill
No. 31 (2011) pass on second and final reading.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No discussion?
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, further discussion? Hearing none, all those in favor
of the motion that Bill No. 31 (2011) pass on second and final reading, signify by
saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: NONE.
CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried with nine "ayes".
Mr. Clerk.
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
24 (2011)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 3.48,
MAUI COUNTY CODE, RELATING TO THE MINIMUM REAL PROPERTY TAX
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
I MOVE TO FILE BILL NO. 24.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
SECOND.
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CHAIR MATEO: It's been moved by Mr. Pontanilla, second by Mr. Hokama to file Bill
No. 24 (2011).
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
Members, being that the minimum tax has been retained at $150, the urgency of the
changes to this section of the Code is no longer present, therefore I would like to file
this Bill and introduce it for committee discussion at a later time. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further discussion?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, just a question, kind of a point of order for you.
When would you like us to have our little discussions that you say is traditional.
CHAIR MATEO: You-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Tomorrow morning.
CHAIR MATEO: We, we can, you know, Mr., Mr. Couch, the Chair, this particular bill is the
last bill that had reference to the budget. The, we can go ahead and take action on
this bill and following this bill the Chair will allow the Members a few minutes to
provide whatever comments that they wish to share regarding the budget.
Thank you, Mr. Couch. Okay, Members, further discussion? All those in favor of the
motion to file Bill No. 24 (2011), signify by saying "aye".
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS BAISA, CARROLL, COCHRAN,
COUCH, HOKAMA, VICTORINO, WHITE,
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA, AND CHAIR MATEO.
CHAIR MATEO: Those opposed say "no"?
NOES: NONE.
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CHAIR MATEO: Motion is carried with nine "ayes".
The Chair offers the opportunity for the Members and I'll start right, we'll,
Mr. Pontanilla had his, his say, we'll go ahead and start at the far end and allow
Mr. Carroll to provide comment briefly, please.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I think the public has heard enough
from me and all the other Members about that. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I'll try to be brief.
Actually I had written several pages of remarks but, since I've remarked all afternoon,
I don't think that I need to go into it. I think, I'd first of all would like to thank the
Members for all the hard work that's been done. I'd like to thank you, Chair, for
leading us and especially our Budget Chair, Mr. Pontanilla, he has a very difficult job.
It's not easy to try and ride herd on nine independent people and I give him credit for,
you know, doing the best, doing a very tough job.
I'd like to thank our staff, they've been just wonderful, they have worked really hard
and sometimes late into the night and on weekends to try and keep up with us and
they do an excellent job.
I'd like to thank the public for being involved. I think the public participation has been
outstanding. They've shown up at our district meetings, they've shown up here.
They've done emails and letters ad nauseam and done a great, great job at, you
know, making us aware of their feeling about everything.
I'd like to thank my colleagues for the respect and honesty and frankness that we
have shared with each other in the past months as we did this. Most of all, I want to
say that I hope that I haven't, you know, offended anybody in any way. I'm really
sorry but people are very important to me and services to people are very important
to me. Not to say that they, they are any more important than public safety and other
items. However, one has to be true to who one is and you know, the saying is "To
thine own self be true". And for me these things were very important.
I'd like to thank my colleagues for their support. I'd like to thank Mr. Victorino for
coming up with a creative way to solve the problem today, our hero once again.
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And, it's all over, you know, and now we'll live with what we've passed. And I will be
here to cooperate with my colleagues in trying to right anything that we've done that
needs righting and work along with everybody to make sure that Maui County needs
what it, has what it needs.
You know, I have great, I guess I'm an optimist also. I believe things are getting
better. I believe that we're going to do better and that the ideas that have come up
during the budget process particularly to increase our revenue will increase that
revenue and that we're going to be okay. So thank you very, very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I, I, you know, hear what our, the fellow Members
have already stated. And my first go around with the budget, it's been frustrating, it's
been challenging, it's been eye opening. It's been I mean, just all kinds of
descriptions that I probably shouldn't say on the air at this point but.
It's a process I think really needs work and it's just really tough when you got to
guestimate and sort of figure what could be or might be or who knows. And it's, but it
is what it is and I think we all put our heart and soul into it. And I just want, I
appreciate staff and everyone who's been here to every step of the way, you know.
And it's just again, luckily for amendments, again, we'll be in Budget Committee's
doing some amendments, I can tell. But it's, it's part of the process and I think we
just need to be well aware and listen to the voices of the people who we are here and
were chosen to represent. And that I think is the bottom line. So, thanks everybody
for your time and efforts.
CHAIR MATEO: Thanks, Ms. Cochran.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I want to first start off by thanking the staff. They did yeomen's duty. They put up
with nine of us making amendments and questions, and an, just, I, I really want to
appreciate what the staff has done and I want to just say that first and foremost. And
then also the public, without the public testimony a lot of the stuff that was happening
today and, and on the twenty-fourth would not have happened. Not that that, that's a
good thing. We listened to the public.
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We reduced the Mayor's budget by ten percent. You know, Mr. Pontanilla said that
that's $65 million that we reduced that budget. It took a lot of work, which we all
signed up for by the way. We did a lot of work, and that's exactly what we got this job
for. We knew this was going to be tough.
I started the meeting today talking about pono, do what is right. I think that we all did
that today, what we felt in our hearts was right. We all heard, hopefully loud and
clear that we have a lot of work ahead of us. I believe that we all agree that we will
do that work and we will come up with what is right.
We all are passionate about our causes and beliefs. We all have the best interest of
Maui County at heart and we all together will come up with a great work product that
will move our County forward. This is the first time for three of us here, wow, what a
trial by fire. Ms. Cochran pretty much said that, as nice as she could too.
I appreciate the knowledge gained by my veteran Councilmembers, invaluable
knowledge, I learned a lot and I appreciate their manao. I just want to say thank you
very much to my Members, the Members here and the staff and the public. Thank
you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you very much.
I, I guess I can say I've been one of the Members that sat in budget sessions during
real good times and in real bad times. And let me tell you, you'd rather sit in this
chair when it's good times, when there's a lot, lot more financial resources available
and, the issue of borrowing is not so critical for the long term financial health and
welfare of this County.
But, while I think we should be conservatively optimistic, we still need to be realistic.
And I don't foresee things getting better for the next two years, in my forecasting.
And I don't think I'm way off Chairman, because while we have had some good
indicators moving upwards, visitor count, some spending. What has not translated is
jobs, growth in jobs for our people. For our local people that are dependent upon
that opportunities to pay for their home, feed their children, provide opportunities of
healthcare, education to their children, grandchildren and to their friends and
neighbors in their community. That hasn't improved.
And, you know, I hope next year, everybody can say Hokama you were so wrong. I'd
be so happy to be proven wrong, Chairman, cause I would love to be proven wrong
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on my forecasting. But I haven't been wrong that often in my years of service to
Lanai and to this County.
But one thing I will like to state is that I think the quality of work that our staff, my
colleagues have put forth has been outstanding. I don't think there is one person
here that has not provided sincere input, heartfelt input and believed what they were
doing was the right thing to do.
You know it's easy to be popular in hard times and just defer to the consensus of
what's happening outside, Chairman. I think every Member here has shown to me
that they wanted to do the right thing cause too many people's lives and families are
at stake. You know, just look at our island of Lanai, we've lost so many young vibrant
families because of lack of job opportunities.
So for me, Chairman, I think I would like to thank Mr. Pontanilla. I don't envy him. I
think he can appreciate what I went through during my tenure as a, as a Budget
Chair. And while it's not easy and sometimes I guess my other colleagues say it was
like herding cats, it just goes to show the dynamics of democracy.
People have different points of view regarding the same thing. I think it was a very
civil, it was heartfelt at times, it was very difficult at times. But I think the principle of
democracy and democracy in action by this body can give confidence to the
community that no matter what we face, we will prevail not only as a community but
as a County. And we can also stand proud to show the rest of the State that the
people of Maui County are willing to face those challenges as one united front.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Hokama.
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chairman.
There's not a whole lot left to be said.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead, Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I would agree with you, Chair, that Mr. Victorino has covered
almost all the bases in his, in his prior remarks.
Mr. Chair, I, I too have great hope for this Council and this County. This has been a,
a challenging process. I take my hat off to the staff for the hours and the dedication
that they've shown us. I take my hat off to Chair Pontanilla for his leadership and
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guidance and you know, there are, there are no leashes on any of us. I wish, I'm
sure that he wishes there were.
But you know what, what for me has come out of this as one of the, the most
wonderful realizations is that this is a great Council. We all have very different
opinions. We all have very different perspectives and that makes it a very balanced
Council. I think the bal, the, the budget that we have passed is a well-balanced, not
financially, but a well balanced budget in the way we are spending the money.
One, as I've said many times, one of the realizations for me is how big some of our
bills are and how they're not going to go away. But I too believe that we're going to
be able to take a hold of that issue and move forward in a very good way. The take
away for me in this process is that while today has been focused on many differences
of opinion, the reality is that the budget represents an agreement on a huge portion,
an agreement on a probably 99 percent of what was put forth by the Chairman.
So, I hope that all of us leave this room today, with a focus on the positives and not
on the, the little bit of disagreement we had on the various items today because this,
this is a great Council and I look forward to being a part of it. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, thank you, Mr. White.
Chair recognizes Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know-COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I thought he had a flight to catch.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, well, Mr., yeah, thank you.
Anyhow, I, I, I said a lot already so I don't have to say much more. But I would really
like to recognize the staff and thank them, especially Scott and Michele for always
being there for us and helping in, in many areas. So that, that's very important. Also
like to thank my staff for their help, being here, you know, helping put together things
and filing all my, and knowing where everything is and so that's really, really helpful.
I've thanked Mr. Pontanilla, thanked everybody, so I no need thank all of you already.
But I have to thank the Administration, you know, I'd like to recognize Sandy for being
here through all these arduous discussions. You know, I think the Administration
really, in their heart of hearts just like us, sent down what they thought was a good
budget. And we took what that, they sent us and did our job and made it a better
budget. So I think together now we can march on and do all the other things.
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And I want the public to really understand that this is the democratic process and I
use, laughing and I was making a joke with all the gallery earlier that, how do you like
dem, democracy. And some of them would say, oh, boy, couldn't you work a little
faster. Well democracy was never made to work fast. It was made so that the input
of everyone was recognized. That every one of the nine here, the public, the
Administration, departments, all the people, are recognized and their manao is
shared amongst all.
And then without that, we would have passed the $300 minimum tax and put out
some farmers, and put out some other people out of business. And maybe put some
of our seniors and, and some of our veterans and others in harm's way. But
unintended consequences, Mr. Chair, we always hear that and sometimes we find it,
sometimes we're lucky we find it before we finish, sometimes we don't recognize it till
after we're done.
But you know what, I think we all try our best so, for those out there, and tomorrow
when you read the paper, I hope the Maui News will recognize that that nine people
here did what they thought was the best. And I'm saying it to the Maui News cause
they there, they here watching. She's back there, I can feel her. But to really say this
Council in all honesty has done their best for the people of Maui County. Mahalo,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. I know I had said something earlier.
You know I, I, I just want to thank personally all of the Councilmembers here and
especially you Chairman for providing a well-rounded meeting today. I, I didn't know
we were going to go close to 5:00 but you know, again, I, I think the people of this
County will appreciate our work, what we've done in regards to the upcoming
2012 Budget. I, I know the Administration can live with it, and again, you know, this
Chairman is open to budget amendments if, if it does help out this County.
I just want to thank because you know I come in week, weekends too yeah, to
formulate this budget. I want to thank, you know, Scott Kaneshina; Michele
Yoshimura; Camille Sakamoto; Carla Nakata; Mr. Raatz, David Raatz; Mr. Ken
Fukuoka; for really standing by this Chairman, providing me with all the help in
regards to formulating the 2012 Budget. I want to thank the rest of the eighth floor
staff for providing us, you know with lunches, dinners, and so forth, you know, keep
us nourished so that we can do our work.

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2011
Page 119

But what I learned from this budget Chairman is that when you defend a budget,
when you defend a budget, and Members, you know, forgive me but that's what I was
doing today, defending the budget that was proposed by the Chairman. And it's a
daunting task, it is a daunting task because we have all nine different ideas and you
know, we think differently.
But again, you know, you know, I, I don't say much at times, but today, you know was
actually me defending the budget that's been proposed as hard as I can, you know.
And, I learned something, that when you believe in something that is right, you know,
you defend it as much as you can.
But again we all think differently and this is an independent body here, you know, I go
along with the majority and once we're done here, you know, life goes on, you know,
we'll have committee meetings. We probably going be talking about the same things
that we talk about in the last few hours.
So, again, Chairman, I, I'd like to really thank you, thank the Members, and especially
the staff that provided this committee with some guidance. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
And the Chair echo the sentiments shared by all of you. This, this for me was one of
the more difficult challenges. Our budget was pressed and yet at the same time we
had to fight another front on Oahu. And it became a challenge for us to be sure that,
that we were aligned with what was happening there, what we were doing here, and
to be sure that the dollars and cents all balanced.
I think the process we went through for the last number of months, challenging as it
was, really provide the opportunity for this body to really work together, you know,
something that is, is really unique to this body. We differ in opinions, we differ in
style, but we all have the same thing in common. We need to take care of our
County, we need to take care of our people and the question becomes, how do we
make it better. And all of you have demonstrated that commitment.
I, I too would like to, you know, recognize the Budget Chair, Mr. Pontanilla. I have
never seen him in my nine years more animated during this budget process than this
year, and that's such a good thing, Mr., Mr. P. So, you know, to you I thank you very
much.
I do know you and your Budget staff worked long hours during the evenings when we
had the opportunity to go home, they were here working. During the weekends when
we had opportunity to spend with our families, you all were here working. And you all

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2011
Page 120

need to be thanked and recognized and acknowledged, and the Chair really thank
you for your commitments.
I think, I think what I have learned personally, I think through the discussions, through
the last number of years, it's become real evident, I think we need now to, to really
dig in. We need to take a look at what is County core responsibilities, balancing it off
with how do we help the nonprofit organizations.
I think it's really important for us because just during our process, we just dug into our
departments. We dug deep. We asked the hard questions, we eliminated premium
pay, we eliminated equipment, we eliminated vehicles, we went through an attrition
program. We took them to task.
And on the other hand, we never asked much of the nonprofits. And we need to
know what success rates we're, you know, we're paying for. We need to get
answers. We need to balance off the equation. And I think this last round of
questions especially, I think it tells us we need to take a look at the big picture and
the big picture is yeah, we need to help each other, or else we need to balance a
budget.
Our primary responsibility is our core services. And we need to be sure that the core
services are in fact protected and we have the ability to continue to provide for our
community because our community keeps growing and our community keeps
demanding the services. And the question becomes how do we afford it?
So, to all of you, I look forward for the discussions that will be coming up as a result
of the budget process we've endured the last number of months. And again thank
you all very much for your commitment and dedication to the people of this County.
Warmest mahalo to all of you.
Mr. Clerk, let's proceed.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
ORDINANCE NO.
BILL NO.
12 (2011)
A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 19.04.040,
MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO
GENERAL PROVISIONS AND DEFINITIONS

Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Maui
June 7, 2011
Page 121

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
I, as a result of still ongoing nego, legal matters and negotiations, I am requesting
that we defer this to date certain, August 5.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, we have a recommendation from the Planning Committee
Chair, that Bill No. 12 (2011) be postponed to date certain, August 5, at our Council
meeting that will be held here in this chamber. Are there any objections with the, with
the proposed recommendation?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, thank you, so ordered.
Mr. Clerk, let's proceed.
COUNTY CLERK: Mr. Chairman, nothing further is scheduled to come before the Council.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, we have concluded the business of the day. The Chair would
like to recognize those individuals that continue to provide assistance to the, to our
Council, our Corporation Counsel, Mr., Mr. Wong; our County Clerk, Mr. Jeff Kuwada;
we also have in the gallery, Mr. Ken Fukuoka the Director of Council Services; the
Chair recognizes our budget staff, Mr. Kaneshina and Ms. Sakamoto; and I don't
know where Ms. Yoshimura is; in addition we also have our Council, our, our Council
staff which is Ms. Murashige and Ms. Valdez.
Members, there's one more item I had forgot to ask, and it's in reference to the bill,
the budget bills that we had addressed. The Chair would like to ask with no
objections, to allow staff to be able to do non-substantive and technical corrections.
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR MATEO: Without objections. Thank you, so ordered. Again, I thank you all very
much. Those who are getting ready to leave for conferences and alike, safe journey
to you. Mr. Hokama, you're on your way home to Molo, to Lanai for important
meetings with DLNR, safe trip to you as well as Mr. Couch.
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Members, Council of the County of Maui regular meeting for June 7, 2011 is
adjourned.

ADJOURNMENT
The regular meeting of June 7, 2011, was adjourned by the Chair at 4:58 p.m.
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